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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Conselidated Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of The Nijgiri Dairy Farm Private
Limited (hereinafter referred 1o as “the Holding Company”), iis subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™) comprising of the consolidated Balance Sheet ag at March 31,
2021, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive income, the
consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement of Change in Equity for the vear then ended,
and notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, including a sunmary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred 10 as “the consolidated Ind AS financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2613, as amended
("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consclidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2021, their
consolidated loss including other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and the conselidated
statement of change in equity for the vear ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing {SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the * Anditor’s Respongibilities for the Audit of the Conselidated Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial staterments under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 2(b) to the consclidated Ind AS Financial Statements. As more fully explained therein, the group
has itcurred a loss of Rs. 3,268.43 lakhs for the ycar ended March 31, 2021 and the Group's current liabilities exceeded
its current assets as at the balance sheet date by Rs. 9,914.82 lakhs. These conditions, along with other matters set forth in
Note 53, indicate the existence of uncertainty that may cast doubt about the Uroup’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect to this matter.

Emphasis of Matter

We also draw attention to Note 53 of the Censolidated Ind AS financial Statement which describes uncertainties and the
management’s assessment of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the operations of the Group, for which a definitive
assessment of the impact in subsequent period is highly dependent on future economic developments and circumstances as
they evolve. Our opinion is not modificd in respect of this matter,
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Eformation Other than the lnd AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company's Beard of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other miormation
eymprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include the consolidated Ind AS financial
salemnents and our auditor’s report thereon,

Gur opinion on the consalidated Ind AS financial statements docs not cover the other information and we do not
&press any form of assurance conclusion thereen.

I connection with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS fin ancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
iformation and. in deing so, consider whether such ofher information is materially inconsistent with the
onsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. 1f, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
eher information, we are required to report that fact. We have nuthing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the reguirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance imcluding other comprehensive income,
consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Group for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completencss of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated Tnd AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS
financial staternents by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless
Management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
50.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Respensibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Our abjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or crror, and to issne an anditor’s repott that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstaiement when it exists. Misstaternents can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregaie, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economnic decisions of nscrs taken on the basis of these consolidated Ind AS financial

statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We aiso:

+  [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and ohtain andit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as (raud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the andit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference 1o
consolidated Ind AS financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by Management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncettainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group te continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Qur conelusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclesures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements represent the underlyiny
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, 1o express an opinion on the
conselidated Ind AS financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors.

We communicate with those chazged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included
in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requircments regarding independence, and to cominunicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legai and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating o preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been Kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and reports of the other auditors;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of
ther Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of
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Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AR financial stalements;

(5) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with thc “Companies
{Accounting Standards) Ruies, 2006 specified under Section 133 of the Act, rcad with the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2015 (as amended};

(&) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and its
subsicliary Companies as on March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directars of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies, none of the directors of the Group’s com panies incorporated in India
is disqualified as on March 31,2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act;

(I} The going concern matter described in Matetial Uncertainty Related to Going Concern patagraph above, in
our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company;

(o) With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial
repotting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies incotporated in India, refer to our separate Report in the “Annexure 17 to this report;

() According 1o the information and explanation given by the Management, there are no transactions on which
the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act, are applicable;

(it  With respect to the other maiters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule [1 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our apinien and 1o the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i The consclidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
consolidated financial position of the Group — Refer Note 49 to the conselidated Ind AS financial
staterments;

ii.  The Group did not have any material foresecable losses in long-term contracts including derivative
contracts during the year ended March 31, 2021,

iii.  ‘There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India during the year
ended March 31, 2021.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LI
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

kel e,

per Ashish Garg,
Partner
Membership Number: 063252

UDIN: 21063252AAAAAHBGG]
Place of Signature: Bengaluru
Date: June 24, 2021



SR Bartigoi & Associates LLP

‘hartered Acecountants

Annexure | to the independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the consolidated Ind AS financial
Statements of The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited

Reporton the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Com panics
Act, 2613 (“the Act™)

To the Members of The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™), its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its
subsidiary together referred to as “the Group™) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2021, we have audited the
internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company which is
acompany incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company which is a company
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining infernal financial controls based on the
internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Group considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note en Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financiat controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s
policies, the safeguarding of s assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our respensibility is to express an opinion on the Group's internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these conselidated Ind AS financial statements based en our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act,
to the cxtent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by Institute of Chartered
Accourtants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical reguirements
and ptan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated ind AS financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit nvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intemal financial
contrels over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over finzocial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditer’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms
of their reports referred to in the Other Matters parageaph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated
Ind AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
ted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls over financia? reporting with reference to
eonsolidated Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures thar (1) pertain to the
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Maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
Preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
Ticeipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
wauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind
AS financial stateinents.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal tinancial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controly, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated in India,
have, maintained in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at March
31, 2021, based on the mternal controt over financial reporting with reference fo these consolidated Ind AS
financial statements criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of iniernal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financiak Reporting issued by
the [nstitute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
‘.-""r“ "Hu;_“:\
A’\'B_L:—__L‘ﬂia- S - ESOQ_
! & e
per Ashish Garg @ {Bengaluru | §
Partner £ fay
Membership Number: 063252 : /b/

UDIN: 21063232AAAAAHE66]
Place of Signature: Bengaluru
Date: June 24, 2021



The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as al Mareh 31, 2021

Al antotnts in INR laklis, wnless otherwise stated)

As at As al
Notes
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Assels
Non-cufrrent assels
Property. plant and equipment 5 2,506.48 2,974.56
Capital Work-in-progress 6 - 14.78
Investmem property 7 21.60 21.60
Goodwill 8 164.90 164.90
Intangible assets 9 65,92 #9.93
Right-o Iuse assels 10 589.5) 1,298.99
Financial asscts
i. Other fimancial assels 1 93.46 315.32
Deferred tax assets (net) 12 - -
Nan current tax asscls (net) 13 735.23 T79.90
Other non current assels 14 26.76 19.09
4,203.86 5,679.07
Current assets
Inventories 15 334.93 853.35
Financial assels
1. Investments 16 1.37 0.95
i, Trade receivables 17 1.384.01 1,782.11
iii. Cash and cash equivalems 18 329 118,68
iv. Bank balance other than (iii) above 19 1.04 1.02
v, Oher linancial assets B 874.24 2,166,064
Other curment assets 14 3R4.50 363.25
3,013.00 5,286.00
Assets held for sale 20 11,582.98 11,582.98
14,595.98 16,868.98
Total assels 18,799.84 22,548.05
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 21 241.44 241.44
Other equity 2 49.30 3.307.74
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 290,73 3,549.18
Non-controlling interests 23 389.10 392.61
Total equity 679.83 3,941.79
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i Borowings 24 240520 219637
ii. Lease Labilitiee 25 682,30 1,724.80
ik Other financial liabilities 26 2022 17.97
Provisions 27 - 25.66
Other non-current liabilities 25 13.80 16.70
3,121.52 3,981.50
Current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
1. Borrowings 24 744047 B.428.01
ii. Lease Liabilitics 25 12492 24562
jii. Trade payables 29
(@) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 11533 31779
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 3,087.69 2,770.73
v, Other financial lizbilitics 20 1,845.21 1,302.21
Provisions 27 103.88 88.52
Other current liabilitics 24 [85.74 360.87
12,903.24 13,513.75
Liabilitics dircetly associated with the assels held for sale 30 2.095.25 L1100
Total liabilitics 18,120.01 18,606.25
Total equity and liabilities 18,799.84 22,548.05
Summary of significant accounting policies 3

The uccompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements,

As per our report of even dale

For 8. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICA] firm registration no.: IOImQW!F.SﬂﬂON

LQ\{_\-SEL_,“%—

~

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited
CIN: UB511O0MHI970PTC265706

per Ashish € _i:tlrg
Partner
Membership number: 063252

I"lace : Bengaluru
Date : June 24, 2021

5 Jugadish e
Director
DIN: 06729556

Place : Bengaluru
Date : June 24, 2021

Abhay Ain Gaikar
Company Sccretary
Membership number: A33494

Place : Bengalur
Date ; June 24, 2021

Jude Savio Linhares
Director
DIN: (8314396

Place : Bengaluru
Date : June 24, 2021
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The Nilgir Dairy Farm Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year endod Mareh 31, 202)

(Al amevny in INR lakhs, unless atherwise stertel)

Income

Revenue from contracts with customers
Other income

Total income

Expenses
Cost of raw material and COmpONCHIs consumed
Purchase of traded poods
Decrease in inventorjes of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods
Employee benelits ex pense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses
Total expenses
Loss before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional items
Loss hefore tax
Tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax charge / (credity
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periads

Re-measurement gaing/ (losses) on defined benefit plans

Tncome tax cffect
Net other comprehensive income pot to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

Other comprehensive income for the Year, net of tax
Tatal comprehensive income for the year
Profits/(Loss) for the Year attributable to -

Equity holders of the parent

Non-conirolling interests

Total loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to :
Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interess

Total other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year atiributable to ;
Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests
Total comprehensive income for the year
Earnings per equity share
Basic and diluted (in INR) (computed on the basis of loss for (he year atiributable to equity holders of the
parent)

Summary of significant accounting policies

For the year ended For the year ended

Notes
March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020
3l 6,28 1,88 17.862.67
32 304.22 113.25
6,586.110) 17,975.92
—————___H
EE] 1,388.24 6,931.34
3,332.88 B.125.19
34 83.03 56.97
35 385.53 691,79
36 1,438.33 1,524.41
37 487.42 558,88
38 2,637.79 2,760.35
9,754.52 20,648.93
(3,168.42) (2,673.01)
39 (100.00) (1.049.04)
(3,268.42) (3,722.05)
40 » -
41 - 29.79
(3,268.42) (3,751.84)
42 6.47 (1.83)
6.47 (1.83)
6.47 _(L83)
(3,261.95) (3,753.67)
(3.264.91) (3,770.68)
(3.51) 18.84
(3,268.42) (3.751.84)
6.47 (1.53)
6.47 1.83
(3.258.44) (3,772.51)
(3.51) 18.84
(3,261.95) (3,753.67)
43 (1,352.29) (1,561.78)
3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statemenys,

As per our report of even date

For . R. Batliboi & Associates LLp
Chartered Accountants
ICAL firm vegisiration no.: 10] MOW/EIN0004

halist 6y

per Ashish Garg

Partner
Membership number: 063252

Place : Bengalury
Date : June 24, 22|

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors of
The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited
CIN: USS1I0MH 1970PTC 265706

Y
S
R

* e

B § Jagadish Jude Satio Linhares

Director
DIN: 06729554

Director

DN 08314396
PMace : Bengalury
Date : June 24, 202

Mace : Bengalury
Date : June 24, 2021

Company Secretary
Membership number: A33494
Place : Bengalury

Date : June 24, 2029




The Niliri Dairy Farm Private Limited
Consolitated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al arr'unts in INK fakhs, enless otherwise stated)

Cash F10ws from aperating activities
Loss before tax

Adjusteents to reconcile loss hefore tax to net cash flows -

Except ional jtems

Finance Costs (including fair value change in finaneial instruments

Finanee income

Interest o income tax refund

Profit/ Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Provision no longer required written back

Net loss/(gain) arising on financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss
Provision for expected credit loss

Gain on Termmation of Right-To-Use Assets

Depreciation of property, plant and cquipment

Depreciation of right-of-use asseis

Amartization of intangible assets

Rent waniver received

Sharc-hased payment expense

Mavements in warking caopital:
(Increase)decrease in trade and other receivables
(Inerease) decrease in inventories
(InereaseMdecrease in other assets

Inerease/ (Decrease) in trade payables

Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions
Increase/(Decrease) in other liabilities

Cash used in operations

Income taxes paid (net)

Net cash used in operating activities (A)

Cash flows lrom investing activities

Finance income

Purchase of property, plant and equipment {including capital work-in progress and capital advances)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Advance Received Against Assets Held for Sale

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities {B)

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of long-term borrowings

Repayment of lease labilities (net of sub-lease rece ipt)
Proceeds from Inter Corporate Deposit

Repayment of Inter Corparate Deposit

Proceeds/( repayments) of short torm borrowings from bank
Interest paid

Net cash generated/(utilised) from financing activities (C)

Net increase f (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+BHC)
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statements :

Balances with banks

= On current account

Cash on hand

Cash and cash equivalents as at the yearend

Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 3)

For the year ended

March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

(3,208.42) (3,722.05)
100.00 1,049.04
143833 1,524 41
{3.45) (36.38)
(2.27) (0.49)
3.06 (0.44)
- (26.00)
(0.43) 2,06
1,339.54 40.00
(257.84) -
355.89 A02.00
Y3.45 104,58
38.48 47.30
(17.25) -

- (230.97)
(150.90) (541.93)
276.07 1,260,34

518.42 (227.11)
185 (1og.22)
(24.06) 155.69
(5400 (182.76)
(222.93) (199.29)
_ 361.45 (143.28)
16.05 (95.26)
408.40 (238.54)
345 3037
(7.15) (79.24)
9.13 32309
984.25 111100
989.67 1,391.32
(123.08) (123.08)
(0.00) (42.22)
200.00 7.242.00
(1,000.51) (5.069.00)
(187.05) (2,097.35)
(373.21) (983.46)
(1,483.85) (L,073.11)
(85.77) 79.67
118.68 39.01
3291 118.68
As at As at

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

3291 | 18,600
: 0.08
32.91 118,68

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For 8, R, Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI firm registration no,; 101049W/E30

habist Uy

per Ashish Garg
Partner
Membership number: 063252

Place : Bengaluru
Date = June 24, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited
CIN: UBSTHOMHI970PTC265706

A
Sl
f -
B § Jagadish t
Director
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The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited
Notes to tHC consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2021
(Al amowe!s in INR {akhs, unless otherwise statec)

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

Corporate Information

The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited (“the Company”, "the Parent Company") was incorporated on August 21, 1970 as a Private Limited
Company under the Companies Act, 1956, The registered office of the Company is at Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar, Off Jogeshwari
Vikhroli Link Road, Jogeshwari (East), Mumbai - 400 060, The Company is primarily engaged in manufacture of dairy products and trading
of staples, bakery products and other food produets.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Future Consumer Limited ("FCL" or “the Holding company’), an entity listed on BSE and
NSE.

These consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidiarics
Company’s subsidiaries refer note 3 (a),

(referred collectively as “the Group®). For details of the

Effective January 1,2018, two of the subsidiaries i.c. Nilgiri’s Mechanised Bakery Private Limited (NMBPL) and Appu Nutritions Private
Limited (ANPL) have entered into a business conduct agreement with Galaxy Cloud Kitchen Limited (“Galaxy™) for transfer of operations,
whereby allowing Galaxy to undertake and conduet the operations of manufacturing bukery products by way of eperating from the factory
premises utilizing the resources comprising of the property, plant & equipment, current assets, lahour and other infrastructural facilities. With
this arrangement, NMBPL and ANPL shall generale a royalty income as mutually agreed under this a grecment.

Basis of preparation and presentation
Statement of compliance

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the *Act’) and other relevant

provisions of the Act as amended from time to time.

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on June 24,2021,

Going concern

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis notwithstanding a loss of INR 3,268.43 lakhs for the
year ended March 31, 2021(Previous year loss of INR 3,751 .84 lakhs) and net current liabilities of INR 9,914.82 lakhs as at that datc,
(Previous year INR 8,227.76 lakhs) Bascd on the business plan of the Group and the future cash flow projeetions, the Group belicves it could
be able lo establish a profitable operations. Furthermore, Future Consumer Limited, the Holding Company has provided a letter of
continuing support to the Group confirming its unconditional and irrevocable financial support for a period of at least 12 months from the
date of signing of these Consolidated Financial Statements. The Group®s Management, based on the Group’s future cash flow projections and
the aforesaid letter of continuing support, believes that the Group will be able to continue as a going concern and meet its financial

obligations in the foresceable fulure.

Functional and presentation currency

These Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Ru
have been rounded-ofT to two decimal places to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated,

pees (INR), which is also the Group's functional currency. All amounts

Basis of measurement
The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the
measured at fair values at the end of cach reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies mentioned below.,

historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are

Measurement of fair values

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assel or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place cither:

- In the principal market for the assct or liability, or

- In the absenee of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be aceessible by the Grou P.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market ‘participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,
A fair value measurement of a non-financial assct takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate cconomic benefits by using the

asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the cireumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hicrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowcest Jevel input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics;




The Nilgird Dairy Farm Private Limited
Notes to th € tonsolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2021 (continued)
(Al amountS in INR lakhs, wnless otherwise stated) (cantinued)

2

(c)

n

()

fi1)

(i)

Basis of preparation and presentation (continued)
Measurement of fair values (continued)
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly

observable; and

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurcment is unobservable,

For assets and liabilitics that are recognised in the financial staiements on a recurring basis, the Group determincs whether transfers have
oceurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hicrarchy as explained above.

Use of estimates, judgements and assumptions

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements requires Management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, cxpenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require 1 material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabililies affected in future periods

Other disclosures relating to the Group's exposure to risks and uncertaintics includes:

= Capital management Note 45

= Financial risk management objectives and policies Note 46 and 47

Judgements
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, Management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant
cffeet on the amownts recognised in the Consolidated Financial Statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Group as lessee
The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an aption to extend the
lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be

exercised,

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it
is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create
an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term
if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to excreise or not to exercise the
oplion to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leaschold improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

Usefid lives of property, plant and equipment ane intangible assets - Refer note 3( d) and (e) for details on useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncerainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitics within the next financial year, are described below, The
Group bascd its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change duc to markel changes or circumstances arising that arc
beyond the control of the Group. Such changes arc reflected in the assumptions when they oceur,

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or eash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal caleulation is based on available data from bin ding sales
transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar asscts or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The
value in use caleulation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do net include
restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of’
the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-
inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to goodwill and other intangibles with
indefinite uscful lives recognised by the Group, The key assumptions used (o determine the recoverable amount for the different CGUS,
including a sensitivity analysis, are diselosed and further explained in Note 8.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the Year ended March 31, 2021 {continued)
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Basis of preparation and presentation (continued)

Use of estimates, judgements and assumptions (continued)

Estimates and assumptions (continued)

Impaivment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumplions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
Judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs 1o the impairment calculation, based on Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of cach reporting period.

Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,

based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies,

against which the

Defined benefit plans (eratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments
in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate. future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and irs long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumplions. All
assumptions are reviewed at cach reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the
Management considers the interest rates of government bonds where remaini ng maturity of such bond correspond to expected term of defined
benefit obligation. For plans si ia,
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation with at least an ‘AA” rating or above, as set by an internationally
acknowledged rating agency, and extrapolated as needed along the yield curve to correspond with the expected term of the defined benefit
obligation. The underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality. Those having excessive credit spreads are excluded from the analysis of
bonds on which the discount rate is based, on the basis that they do not represent high quality corporate bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countrics. Those mortality tables tend to change only at
interval in response to demographic changes, Future salary increases and graluity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the

respective countrics,

Fair value measurement of financial mstraments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The nputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values, Judgements
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the

reported fair value of financial instruments,

Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure
lease liabilitics. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar securily, the
funds necessary (o obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted 1o
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates. (such as the subsid iary’s stand-alone eredit rating).

Provision for iventories
Management reviews the aged inventory on a periodic basis, This review involves comparison of the carrying value of the aged nventory
ifem with the respective net realisable value. The purpose is to ascertain whether an allowance is required to be made in the financial
statements for any obsolete and slow-maving items.
Recognition and measurement af provisions and eonfingencies: key assumptions wbout the likelihood and magnituede of an outflow of
resonrce

Represents estimates made for probable cash outflow arising out of pending disputes / litigations with various regulatory authoritics
Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification, An asset is treated as current when it

is:
- expected Lo be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle
= held primarily for the purpose of trading

= £xpected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

\Or cash equivalent unless resiricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting periog

W1 assets are classified as non-current.




The Nilgirf Dairy Farm Private Limited
Notes to th€ consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued)
(Al amcunts in INR lakhs, unless atherwive stated) (continued)
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(a)
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(i)

(b)

(i)

Basis of preparation and presentation (continued)
Current versus non-current classification (continued)

A liability is treated as current when:
- itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle

= iLis held primarily for the purpose of trading
= itis duc 1o be settled within twelve months afler the reporting period, or
- there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liabi lity for at least twelve months afier the reporting period.

The Group classifics all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax asscts and labilities are classified as non-current assets and labilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, The Group

has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Summary of significant accouni ing policies

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiarics as disclosed below :

Proportion of ownership interest and

Name of subsidiary Principal activity iuf::::::[?:n veting power held by the Company
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
- Nilgiris Franchise Limited Service India 100% 100%
- Nilgiri's Mcchanised Bakery Private Limited Manufacturing and service India 85% 83%
= Appu Nutritions Private Limited Manufacturing and service India 76% T6%

Control is achicved when the Group:

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it
has power overan investee, including;

* The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee,

* Rights arising from other contractual arrangements.

* The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

* The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and cireumstanees indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabi lities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases 1o control the

subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments arc made to that group member’s finaneial statements in preparing
the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the group’s accounting policics,

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the Parent
Company, ie., year ended on 31 March, When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that of a subs idiary, the
subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial information us of the same date as the financial statements of the parent
to enable the parcnt to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedure:
Combine like items of assets, liabilitics, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries. For (his purpose,
income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial

statements at the acquisition date.

Offset (eliminate) the earrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary.
Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goadwill,

diminate in full inragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of (he
g, (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated
Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Incon
lics to temporary differences that arise from the elimination o Fprofits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions,




The Nilgirf Dairy Farm Private Limited
Notes to th€ consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31,2021 (continued)
(AN amowrsfS in INR lakhs, wiless otherwise stated) (continued)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Consolidation procedure (continued):
fiv) Non-controlling interest represents that part of the total comprehensive income and net assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests which
arc not owned, dircetly or indirectly, by the Parent Company

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed (o the equity holders of the parent and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Group and to the non-controlling interests
even if'this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group loses

control over a subsidiary, it:

* Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
* Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

* Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

= Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

* Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

* Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss
* Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI 1o profit or loss or retained eamings, as appropriate, as would

be required if'the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilitics

(c) Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the
consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests n the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group clects whether to measure the non-contrelling interests
in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as

incurred,

Al the acquisition date, the identifiable asscts acquired and the liabilities assumed are reeognised at their acquisition date fair values. For this
purpose, the labilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair
values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and
liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis indicated helow:

* Deferred tax assets or liabilitics, and the assets or ligbilities related to employce benefit armangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.

» Liabilities or cquity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share — based payments arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based
Payments al the acquisition date.

= Asscts (or disposal groups) thal are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current Asscts Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that standard.

* Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of the related contract. Such valuation
does nol consider potential renewal of the reacquired right,

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic eireumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recogniscd for non-
controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. 1 the fair value of the net
assets acquired is in cxcess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the
assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition
date. If the reassessient still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the
gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no elear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity
recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured al cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to cach of the Group's cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree arc assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indieation -

at the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss _s-\}x\[rj‘\( PA}

aled first to reduce the carrying amount of any poodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based o rl]l_!c‘

amount of each asset in the unit. Any impainnent loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss rccognisaf(ﬂl’b
L

$)

&

is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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(d)
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(i)

(i)

(iv)

Summary of significant aceounting policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated 1o a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated
with the disposed operation is included in the earrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill
disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit

retained.

Property, plant and equipment and Capital work in progress
Recognition and measurement

Plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, ifany. Such cost includes the cost
of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if’ the recognition criteria are met, An
item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the camying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Subsequent expenditure

When a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement il the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred, The present value of the
expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset afier its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a

provision are melL.

Depreciation

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to bhe replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their
speeific useful lives.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write ofT the cost of assets (other than frechold land) less their residual values over their useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of cach reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in cstimate accounted for on a prospective basis. Estimated uselul lives of the assets arc as follows:

Useful Life

Class of asset

Buildings 50 years*
Office equipment 1.5-15 years
Computer 1.5-10 years
Furniture and Fixture 8-10 years
Vehicle 1.5-5 years

1.5-3 years
1.5-15 years

3 years

Plant and Machinery
Leasehold Improvement
Eleetrical installation

Laboratory equipment
*Pursuant to transition to Ind AS, the Group fair valued its land and building. Based on the report of an independent valuer, the Group has re-

estimated the useful life of building to be 50 years, Accordingly, depreciation has been computed on the remaining useful life of the assets.

1.5-5 years

Freehold land is not depreciated

Leaschald improvements are depreciated over the primary lease period or useful life, whichever is shorter, on a straight-line basis.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and

adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
Property, plant and equipment and Capital work in progress (continued)

Impairment

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order 10 determine the extent of the impainment loss (if any). When it is nol possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated 1o individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be

identified,
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and Capital work in progress (continued)

Tmpairment feontinued)

Recoverable amount of an intangible asset is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash Nlows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

The Group bases its impairment caleulation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the
Group's CGUs to which the individual asscts arc allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For
longer periods, a long-term growth rate is caleulated and applied 1o project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow
projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a
steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not execed
the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the enlily operates, or for the market in which

the asset is used.

If the recoverable amount of an assel (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in statement of profit and

loss.

When an impairment loss subscquently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased 1o the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the assel (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.

Reclassification to Assets held for sale
The Group classify a non-current assets as held for sale if the carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather

then continuing usc.

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Advances paid towards the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment outstanding at cach balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under the non-current assets and the cost of assets
ready for intended use before such date are disclosed under *Capital work-in progress’.

Intangible assets
Recognition and measurenent

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and aceumulated
impairment losses. An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expeeted from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derccognition of an intangible assel, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the assel, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation

Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated uscful life and amortisation method are
teviewed at the end of cach reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Changes
in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the assct are considered to maodify
the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and arc treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Class of asset Useful Life

Computer Software 5 years

Financial Instrument
A financial instrument is any contraet that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another

entity,

Financial assets

dunitial recogwition and wmeasurenent
Financial assets are classified, al initial recognition, as subscquently measured al amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive

income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(f) Financial Instrument (continued)
| Financial assets (continued)
(i) Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that
are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPP1)” on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and
is performed at an instrument level, Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both,
Financial assets classificd and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding 1o collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date tha the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset,

(i) Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four calegories:

: Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial asscts at fair value through other comprebensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt
instruments)

® Financial assets designated al fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity
mstruments)

® Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

e Financial assets at amortised cost (deht instruments)
A “financial asset’ is measurced at the amortised cost i’ both the following conditions are met:

- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for colleeting contractual cash flows, and

- Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs thal are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finanee income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit
or loss. The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, and other non-current financial assets.

* Financial assets at Sair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recveling of cunlative gains and losses (debt
instruments)
A “financial asset’ is classified as at the FYTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

- The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

- The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI,
Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at cach reporting date at {air value. For debt
instruments, at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the
profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are
recognised in OCL Upon derccognition, the cumulative fair value changes recognised in OCI s reclassified from the cquity to profit or loss.

® Financial assets designated at fuir value through OCl with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity
instriments)
Upon initial recognition, the Group can clect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at fair value
through OCT when they mect the definition of equity under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recyeled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of
profit and loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of
the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains arc recorded in OCL Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCT are not

subject to impairment assessment.
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Summary of significant accounting policics (continued)
Financial Instrument (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurem enifeontinued)

Financial assets at fuir value through profit or loss (FCTPL)

Fair value through profit or loss is a residual category for debt instruments. Any financial mstrument, which does not meet the criteria for

categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classificd as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may clect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL.
However, such clection is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as

‘accounting mismatch’). The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL calegory are measured al fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit or
loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable. a part of
from the Group's consolidated balance sheet) when:

a financial asset or part of a similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.c. removed

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through® arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel, but has

transferred control of the asset,

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if
and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the assct, the Group conlinues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability arc measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantce over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, the Group applics expected credit loss (ECL) mode! for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss for financial assets.

The Group tracks credit risk and changes thereon for each customer. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk
exposure, the Group determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has
not inereased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime
ECL is used. If in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in risk
since initial recognition, then the entity reveris 1o recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

ECL is the difTerence between all contractual cash flows that are due 1o the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the entity expects to receive (i.c., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an cntity is required to
consider:

ancial instrument over the expeeted life of the financial instrunient. However, in rare cases when the expected

All contractual terms of the fin
then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial

life of the financial instrument cannot he estimated reliably,
instrument,

Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. The Group uses default rate
for credit rigk to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables.

the statement of profit and

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in
ance sheet presentation for

loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head *other expenses” in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The bal
various financial instruments is described below:

Financial assets measured as at amortised cosl, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: FCL is presented as an allowance, i.e.,
as an integral part of the measurement of those assels in the balance sheel. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset
meets write-off criteria, the Group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

- Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.c. as a liability,
- Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced
om its value. Rather, ECL amount js presented as “accumulated impairment amount” in the OC].

strun'renls measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are alrcady reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduce
value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as “accumulated impaitment amount’ in the OCL
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial Instrument (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Tmpairment of financial assets (continued)

Trade receivable - The Group applies approach permitted by Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be

recognised (rom initial recognition of receivables.
Other financial asscts - For recognition of impairment loss on other Minancial asscts and risk cxposure, the Group detenmines whether there
has been a significant increase in the eredil risk since initial recognition and if credit risk has increased significantly, impairment loss is

provided.

Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries is carried at cost in the financial stalements,

Interest income is recognised in statement of profit and loss for FVTOCI debi instruments. For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange
gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the
amortised cost are recognised in statement of profit and loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCT financial assets are recognised in
other comprehensive income and aceumulated under the heading of ‘Reserve for debt instruments through other comprehensive income’.
When the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in this reserve is reclassified to statement of profit

and loss,
All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurcnient
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or

payables, as appropriate.
All finaneial liabilitics are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable

transaction costs. The Group’s financial liabilitics include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings."
The Group's financial liabilitics include trade and other payables, Joans and borrowings including and bank overdrafts,

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
® Financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss.

® Financial liabilities at amortised cost.

® Financial liabilities at Sfair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilitics held for trading and financial liabilitics designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on
liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilitics designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to
changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCIL These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Group may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such lability are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair valuc through profit or loss.

® Financial liabilities at amortised cost,
Aler initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilitics are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss,

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability arc substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The

difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

0] Financial Instrument (continued)
i Reclassification of financial assets
The Group determines elassification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is
made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes 1o the business model are expected
to be infrequent. The Group’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which
are significant to the Group's operations. Such changes arc cvident to cxteral partics. A change in the business model oceurs when the
Group either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the
change in business model, The Group does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or

interest,

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

Original classification Revised classification Accounting treatment

FVTPL Fair value is measured al reclassification date. Difference
between previous amortized cost and fair value is recognised
in profil or loss.

Amortised cost

FVTPL Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new £ross
carrying amount, EIR is calculated based on the new pross
carrying amount

FVOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference
between previous amortised cost and fair value is recognised
in OCL No change in EIR due to reclassification.

Amortised cost

FvOCI Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new amortised
cost carrying amount. However, cumulative gain or loss in
OCl is adjusted against fair value. Consequently, the asset is
measured as if it had always been measured at amortised cost.

FVTPL FVOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new carrying
amount. No other adjustment is required

Fvocl FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative gain
or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss the reclassification date.

v Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offsct and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to ofTset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously

(g) Taxes
(i) Current income tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax” as reported in the statement of
profit and loss because of ilems of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that arc never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s current tax is caleulated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
periad.

Current income tax relating 1o items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current tax ilems are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction cither in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically cvaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

(ii) Peferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assels and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, While preparing consolidated financial statements,
temporary differences are caleulated using the carrying amount as per consolidated financial statements and tax bases as determined by
reference to the method of tax computation.

Deferred tax liabilitics are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary dilferences can be utilised, Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are nol recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (ather than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profil nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of

odwill.

ing amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no lor
B\that sufTicient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(£) Taxes (Continued)
(ii) Deferred tax (Contined)

Deferred tax liabilitics and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected 10 apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
assel realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expeets, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

(i) Current and deferved tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax cffect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to sel off current lax assets against current lax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

(iv) Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT)
Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax for the year. The deferred tax assel is
recognised for MAT credit available only to the extent that it is probable that the concerned Group will pay normal income tax during the
specified period, ie., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Group recognizes MAT
credit as an asset, it is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as part of deferred tax asset. The Group reviews
the “"MAT credit entitlement’ asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that it will pay

normal tax during the specified period.

(v) Sules/ value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on inenrving expenses
Expenses and asscts arc recognised net of the amount of sales/value added taxes paid, except:
- When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable
- When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included
The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance

sheet

(h) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories

less all estimated costs of ecompletion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for as follows:

Nature of inventory Component of cost

Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventorics 1o their
present location and condition. Cost 15 determined on weighted average cost basis.

- Raw materials, packing material and store
& spares
Cost includes cost of dircet materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads

- Finished goods and work in progress
based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs

Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incumed in bringing the inventories to their

- Traded poods
present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash cquivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(i) Non-current assets held for sale
The Group classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale rather than
through continuing use.
Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Costs to sell
are the incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset , excluding finance costs and income tax expense,

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable, and the asset is available for immediate
sale in its present condition. Actions required to complete the sale/ distribution should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to
the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be commitied to the sale and the sale expected withit
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
M Non-current assets held for sale (continued)
For these purposes, sale transactions include exchanges of non-current assets for other non-current assets when the exchange has commercial
substance. The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded met only when the assets is available for immediate sale in its present
condition, subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets | its salc is highly probable; and it will genuinely be sold,
not abandoned. The Group treats sale of the asset to be highly probable when:

= The appropriate level o management is committed to a plan to sell the asset

= An active programme 1o focate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated

- The asset is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value

= The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification, and

- Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made or that the plan will be

withdrawn,

Property, plant and equipment and intangible are not depreciated, or amortised assets once classified as held for sale.
Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately from other items in the balance sheet.

(k) Leases
The Group assesses at contraet inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use

of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

1 Group as a lessee
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, excepl for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assels representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(i) Right-of-use assets
The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.c., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-usc asscts arc measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilitics recognised, initial dircet costs incurred, and lease payments
made al or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in note 2(f) for policy on impairment of non-financial

assels.

(i) Lease Liabilities
Al the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease paymenis to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guaranices. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, 1l the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as expenscs (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition "

that triggers the payment occurs,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date heeause the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured it
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

(iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value asseis
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of mach inery and equipment (i.c., those leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do nol contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value
assels recognilion exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease fern,

hg and arranging an operating lease arc added to the carrying amount of the leased assct and recognised over the lease term o
is as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are carned.




The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited
Notes to t1¢ tonsolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued)
(Al amowne 1S i INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) (contined)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

[1)] Provisions

(i) General
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required {o settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the refmbursement is virtually certain, The expense relating to a provision is

presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

as a result of a past event, it is probable that an

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the

risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time 1s recognised as a finance

cost.

(m) Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that

reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

1 Sale of products
The Group sells fast moving consumer goods (“FMCG™), Food and Proces:
and trading of staples, bakery products and other food produets.

sed Food Products. It is engaged in manufaicture of dairy products

In the comparative period, revenue was measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue was reduced for
estimated customer returns, rebates and similar allowances. Revenue from sale of goods was recognised when the goods were delivered and
titles have passed. i.e. The Group had transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods: the Group retained
neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor cffective control over the goods sold; the
amount of revenue eould be measured reliably; it was probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction would flow to the
Group; and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respeet of the transaction could be measured rcliably.

The Group recognizes revenue on the sale of goods, net of discounts, sales incentives and rebates granted when control of the goods is
transferred to the customer.

Nature, timing of satisfaction of performance obligation and transaction price (Fixed and vatriable)

The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control of a product or service Lo a customer.

upon the incoterms or as agreed with customer or delivery basis (i.e. at the
n the customer purchases the goods from the Group warehouse). Control is
ility to dircet the use of such goods and obtain substantially all the benefits
of distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary

The control of goods is transferred (o the customer depending
point in time when goods are delivered to the customer or whe
considered 1o be transferred to eustomer when customer has ab
from it such as following delivery, the customer has full discretion over the manner
responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods,

At inception of the contract, Group assesses the goods or services promised in a contract with a customer and identifies cach promise to
transfer to the customer as a performance obligation which is either:

(@) a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct: or

(b} a series of distinet goods or services that are substantially the samc and that have the same pattern of transfer to the customer.

the transaction price considering the amount it expects

Based on the terms of the contract and as per business practice, the Group determines
It excluded amount collected on behalf of third parties

to be entitled in exchange of transferring promised goods or services to the customer.

such as taxes.

The Group provides volume discount and rebate schemes to its customers on certain goods purchased by the customer once the quantity of
goods purchased during the period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Volume discount and rebate schemes give rise to variable
consideration. To estimate the variable consideration to which it will he entitled, the Group considers that either the expected value method
or the most likely amount method, depending on which of them belter predicts the amount of variable consideration for the particular type of
contract. The Group also considers the requirements of constraining estimates of variable consideration and makes adjustment to reduce
revenue from sale of poods with a corresponding increase in other payables (Contract liabili ties).

Under the Group’s standard contract terms, customers have a right of return as per terms of trade. Al the point of sale, a refund liability and a
sponding adjustment to revenue is recognised for those produets expeeted to be returned. At the same time, the Group has a right to
ar the product when customers exercise their right of retumn so consequently recognises a right to returned goods asset and a
ynding adjustment to cost of sales, The Group uses its accumulated historical experience to estimate the number of returns on4
plid) level using the expected value method. Tt is considered highly probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative re
1 will not oceur given the consistent level of retumns over previous years.

EOITE
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(m)

(n)

L1

v

Summary of signifieant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contract with customer (continued)

Sale of products(continued)

In case there is considerable time gap between transfer of good and services and receipt of fees for it, the Group evaluates the financing
clement in the transaction. The promised amount of consideration is adjusted for a significant financing component (variable component) lo
recognise revenue at an amount that reflects the price that a customer would have paid for the promised goods or services il the customer had
paid cash for those goods or services when (or as) they transfer 1o the customer (i.c. the cash selling price). The financing component 18
accounted considering prevailing market interest rates and the time value of money.

In case where the customer gives non-cash consideration for the goods and services transferred or where customer provides the Group certain
muterials, equipment, ete. for carrying out the scope of work and the Group obtains control of those contributed goods or service, the fair
value of such non-cash consideration given /materials supplied by customer is considered as part of the transaction price. For allocating the
transaction price, the Group has measured the revenue in respect of cach performance obligation of a contract al its relative standalone selling
price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is the best evidence of its standalone selling price. In cases where
the Group is unable to determine the standalone sclling price, the Group uses the expected cost plus margin approach in estimating the

standalone selling price.

Sale of services
Revenue from rendering of services is recognised over time considering the time elapsed. The transaction price of these services is
recognised as a contract liability upon receipt of advance from the customer and is released on a straight line basis over the period of service

(monthly basis)

Raoyalty income
Royalty income is a payment received for ulilizing the resources comprising of the fixed and current assets, labour and other infrastructural

facihties of the Group.

Orher operating revenues

() Franchisee fees
The Group cams franchisee fee by allowing the franchisee partners to use its brand and certain common facilities made available by the
Group.

(h) Technical know how
The Group eamns technical know how fee from franchisee partners for providing consultation and guidance for starting the franchise and for

conducting training on system and process.

(¢) Others
Includes listing fee and display income received from outside parties for listing of their products in Nilgiris product master list or display

activilies in Nilgiris stores,

Contract balances

(a) Confract assely
A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue eamed from sale of product/service because the receipt of consideration is conditional on

suceessful completion of remaining performance obligation. Upon completion of the remaining performance obligation and acceplance by the
customer, the amount recognised as contract asscls is reclassified to trade receivables. Contract asseis are subjeet to impairment assessment

(b) Trade receivables
A receivable is recognised by the Group when the control over the goods is transferred to the customer such as when goods are delivered as
this represents the point in time at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is required before

payment is due, The average credit period on sale of goods is 21 to 45 days.

(c) Contract liabilities
A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Giroup
transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.c.,

transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Retirement and other employment benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund and Employees’ State Insurance Corporation (ESIC) are defined contribution schemes
whose contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period when they are due to the respective funds. The Group
recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. There are no

obligations other than the contributions to the respective funds.




The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited
Notes to tP€ consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued)
(Al ament S in INR lakhs, wnless otherwise stated) (cantinwed)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(n) Retirement and other cmployment benefits (continued)

The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial pains and losses,
the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained carnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to

profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Net interest is caleulated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the following
changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the consolidated staternent of profit and loss:

Service costs comprising current service costs, pasi-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements: and

Net interest expense or income

(0) Leave Encashment / Compensated Absences

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilised within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Group
measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expeets to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has

accumulated at the reporting date.

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement
purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at
the year-end. Actuarial gain/loss are immediately taken 1o the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Group presents the entire
leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the

reporting date.

Contributions from employees or third parties to defined benefit plans

Discretionary contributions made by employces or third parties reduce service cost upon payment of these contributions to the plan.

When the formal ternms of the plans specify that there will be contributions from employces or third parties, the accounting depends on

whether the contributions are linked to service, as follows:

If the contributions are not linked to services (e.g. contributions are required to reduce a deficit arising from losses on plan assets or from
actuarial losses), they are reflected in the re-measurement of the net defined benefit liabili ty/(asset).

If contributions are linked to services, they reduce service costs. For the amount of contribution that is dependent on the number of years of
service, the Group reduces service cost by attributing the contributions to periods of serviee using the attribution method required by Ind AS
19.70 for the gross benefits. For the amount of contribution that is independent of the number of years of service, the Group reduces service
cost in the period in which the related service is rendered / reduces service cost by attributing contributions to the employees’ periods of

service in accordance with Ind AS 19

(p) Share based payments
Employces of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for

cquity instruments (cquity-scttled transactions) of the Holding Company.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation
model. That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over the period in
which the performance andfor service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at cach reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period
represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits
expense. The Group does not reimburse the cost of employee stock options to its Holding Company.

(q) Earnings per share
Basic eamings per share are ealeulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the parent (after
deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Parly
paid equily shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share 1o the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully
aid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for
» such as bonus issue, bonus clement ina rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the

A

['equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.
fjurpose of calculating diluted carnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders and il L
werage number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effeets of all dilutive potential equity shares. Ny
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(u)
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Borrowing costs

Bormrowing cosis directly attributable 10 the acquisition, construction or production of an assel that necessarily takes a substantial period of
time fo get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they occur, Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past evenis whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities and commitments are
reviewed by the Management al cach balance sheel dale,

Operating segment

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Company assesses the financial performance and position of the Group, and makes strategic
decisions. The Board has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker (*CODM’). The CODM, responsible for strategic
decisions, for the assessment of the segments” performance and for the allocation of resources (o the segments, is the Board of Directors,

Investment property

Investment properties are propertics held to cam réntals. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subscquent io initial recognition, investment propertics are measured in accordance with Ind AS 16's ‘Property, plant and cquipment’ (“Ind
AS 16") requircments for cost model. The Group measures investment properly using cost based measurcment, the fair value of investment
property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited extemal independent
valuer applying a valuation model recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit and loss in the period in which the property is

derecognised.
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

Appendix € to Ind AS 12: Uncertainty over income tax treatment

The appendix addresses the accounting for income taxes when fax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the application of Ind AS 12
Income Taxes. It does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of Ind AS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to
interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The Appendix specifically addresses the following:

Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

The assumptions an entity makes aboul the examination of tax treatments by taxation authoritics

How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax basces, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates

How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances”

The Group determines whether to consider cach uncertain tax treatment scparately or together with one or more other uncertain tax
treatments and uses the approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.

The Group applies significant judgement in identifying uncertaintics over income tax treatments. The Appendix did not have an impact on

the financial statements of the Group.

(This space is intentionally lefi blank)
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The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited

Not€5 to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Al @mounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise siated)

¢ Capital work in progress
As at April 1, 2019
Additions
Capitalisation during the year
As at March 31, 2020
Additions
Capitalisation during the year
As at March 31, 2021

7 Investment property

Gross carrying amount
As at April 1,2019
Additions during the year
Disposals

As at March 31, 2020
Additions

Disposals

As at March 31, 2021

Accumulated depreciation
As at April 1, 2019

Charge for the year

As at March 31, 2020
Charge for the year

As at March 31, 2021

Net carrying Amount
As at Mareh 31, 2020
As at March 31, 2021

Amount
18.82

(4.04)
14.78

(14.78)

Frechold Land
(Amount)

21.60

21.60

21.60

21.60
21.60

(i) For investment property existing as on April 01, 2015 i.e. date of transition to Ind AS, the Group has used Indian GAAP

carrying value as deemed costs.

(ii) The fair value of the Company's investment property as at March 31, 2021 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on the respective date by an independent valuer not related to the Company. M/s Kanti Karamsey & Co. are
registered with the authority which governs the valuers in India, and they have appropriate qualifications. The fair value of
land was determined based on the market approach and fair value of building was determined based on cost approach. In
estimating the fair value of the propertics, the highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

(ii1) Details of rental income derived from investment property are as follows:

Rent income

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
12.57 12.57

(iv) Details of the Group’s investment propertics and information about the fair value hierarchy as at March 31, 2021 and

March 31, 2020 are as follows:

As at March 31,2021  As at March 31, 2020

496.00 441.00
Level 3




The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited
Not€Sto the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All @mounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

g  Goodwill

Amount

Gross carrying amount
As at April 1, 2019 063.94
Additions during the year -
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2020 963.94
Additions -
Disposals B
As at March 31, 2021 963.94
Accumulated impairment
As at April 1, 2019 -
Charge for the year 799.04
As at March 31, 2020 799.04
Charge for the year -
As at March 31, 2021 799.04
Net carrying Amount
As at March 31, 2020 164.90

164.90

As at March 31, 2021

(i) The goodwill of INR 799.04 lakhs relates to business acquisition of Nilgiri's Mechanised Bakery Private Limited, TNR
131.12 relates to business acquisition of Appu Nutritions Private Limited and INR 33.78 lakhs relates to business
acquisition of Nilgiris Franchise Limited. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at March 31 and when
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
('CGU") was determined based on value-in-use calculations which require the use of assumptions. The calculations used in
cash flow projections are based on financial budgets approved by management covering a four year period.

(1) Tpe following table sets out the key assumption for these Cash Generating Units ("CGU") :

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Discount rate 12.50% - 17.00% 12.50% - 17.00%
Long term growth rate 5.00% - 6.10% 5.00% - 6.10%
5.00% - 10.00% 5.00% - 10.00%

Sales growth rate

(ii1) The Group has recognised goodwill impairment for the year ended March 31, 2021 of INR Nil lakhs (March 31, 2020:
INR 799.04 lakhs) relating to Nilgiri's Mechanised Bakery Private Limited.

(iv) There is no impairment noted in the Appu Nutritions Private Limited and Nilgiris Franchise Limited, based on the
assessment performed by the management for the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020. Management has
performed sensitivity analysis around the base assumption and has concluded that no reasonable possible change in key
assumptions would cause the recoverable amount of the Appu Nutritions Private Limited and Nilgiris Franchise Limited
lower than the carrying amount of CGU. For the year ended March 31, 2021 there are no circumstances which indicated

that the carrying value may be impaired.

(This space is intentionally lefi blank)




The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amotints in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

9 Intangible assets
Software (Amount)

Gross carrying amount

As at April 1, 2019 330.73
Additions during the year -
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2020 330.73
Additions during the year 14.47
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2021 345.20
Accumulated Amortisation
As at April 1, 2019 193.50
Charge for the year 47.30
As at March 31, 2020 240.80
Charge for the year 38.48
As at March 31, 2021 279.28
Net carrying Amount
As at March 31, 2020 89.93
65.92

As at March 31,2021

10 Right of use of Assets
Building (Amount)

Gross carrying amount
Asat April 1, 2019

Additions 1,408.57
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2020 1,408.57
Additions during the year
Disposals 738.07
As at March 31, 2021 670.50
Accumulated Depreciation
As at April 1, 2019 -
Charge for the year 109.58
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2020 109.58
Charge for the year 03.45
Disposals 122.04
As at March 31, 2021 80.99
Net carrying Amount
As at March 31, 2020 1,298.99
589.51

As at March 31, 2021

(This space is intentionally left blank)




The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al @Morats in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1

(1)
(ii)

14

Other financial assets

Non-current

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Security deposits

Other deposits

Operating lease receivables - Refer note 25

(Unsecured, considered doubiful, unless otherwise stated)
Security and other deposits
Less: Provision for doubtful deposits

Current

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise staied)
Security deposits

Other deposits

Operating lease receivables - Refer note 25

Unbilled revenue

Other receivables - Refer note (ii) below

Considered doubtful:

Refer note 24 for details of other current financial assets pledged as security for borrowings.

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
56.30 10.74
37.16 58.05
- 246.53
93.46 315.32
23.46 23.46
(23.46) (23.406)
93.46 315.32
752.28 848.87
8.15 8.15
- 57.49
78.13 113.80
1,156.12 1,138.33
(1,120.44) .
874.24 2,166.64

Includes other receivable of INR Nil (March 31, 2020: INR 1,138.33) from related parties. Refer note 48.

Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax assets (net)

Non- current tax assets (net)

Income tax assets (net)

Other assets

Non-current
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Capital advances

Current

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Advances given to supplicrs

Prepaid expenses

Balances with government authorities

Other advances

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

-

As at As al
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
735.23 779.90
735.23 779.90
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

26.76

19.09

26.76

19.09

281.11
4.58
96.41
2.40

384.50

Refer note 24 for details of other assets pledged as security for borrowings,




The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited
Notes lo the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All @Mounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Inventories (lower of cost and net realisable value)

Raw materials (valued at cost)

Finished goods (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Traded goods (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Packing material (valued at cost)
Stores and spares (valued at cost)

As at As al
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
52.04 400.64
18.34 79.08
129.93 152.22
114.79 213.69
19.83 6.82
334.93 853.35

(i) Inventories as stated above are net of provision for old and slow moving inventories amounting to INR 78.96 lakhs

(March 31, 2020: INR 195.76 lakhs).

(i} Inventories include material held by third party of INR 90.75 lakhs ( March 31, 2020: INR 532.35 lakhs)
(iii) Refer note 24 for details of inventories pledged as security for borrowings.

16

Current Investments

Quoted equity instruments

Investments at fair value through profit and loss

2,250 equity sharcs of Karnataka Bank Lid. (March 31, 2020 :
2,250 shares)

Aggregate book value of quoted investments

Aggregate market value of quoted investments
Aggregate value of unquoted investments

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments

Trade receivables
Carried at amortised cost

Trade receivables
Trade receivables [rom related parties - refer note 48

Breal-up for sccurity details:

Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good

Trade reccivables which have significant increase in credit risk

Trade receivables - credit impaired

Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful
debts)

Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Trade receivables - credit impaired

Trade receivables net of impairment

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

1.37 0.95
1.37 0.95
1.37 0.95
1.37 0.95

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

648.41 1,149.26
735.60 632.85
1,384.01 1,782.11
1,384.01 1,782.11
40.00 40.00
584,78 365.67
2,008.79 2,187.78
(40.00) (40.00)
(584.78) (365.67)
1,384.01 1,782.11

(i) No trade or other receivable are due from dircctors or other officers of the Parent Company cither severally or jointly
with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms in which any director is a partner. For
the private companies in which directors of the Parent Company are also a director is disclosed under Note 48,

' &AS

civables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 10 to 100 days.
> 24 for details of trade receivables pledged as security for borrowings.
p's exposure to credit risk and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in note 4713,




The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited
Notes lo the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All aMounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

18 Cash and cash equivalents

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Balances with banks
- On current accounts 32.9]
(ash on hand -

118.60
0.08

3291

118.68

(1) Refer note 24 for details of cash and cash equivalents pledged as security for borrowings.
(i1) For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following :

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Balances with banks

- On current accounts 3291 118.60
Cash on hand - 0.08
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flows 32.91 118.68
19 Other bank balances
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Deposit with original maturity more than 3 months but less than 12
months 1.04 1.02
1.04 1.02
(i) Refer note 24 for details of other bank balances pledged as security for borrowings.
(i1) Fixed deposits marked as lien with statutory authorities.
20 Asset held for sale
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Freehold land 10,983.08 10,983.08
Building 599.90 599.90
11,582.98 11,582.98

(1) The Group has reclassed land and building from property, plant and equipment to assets held for sale. Refer note 5 (ii)

(i) Frechold land & building of the Group with a net book value of INR 11,582.98 lakhs (March 2020 : INR 11,582.99 lakhs)
are hypothecated to Catalyst Trusteeship Limited against non-convertible debentures (NCDs) issued and term loan taken

by the Future Consumer Limited (the Holding Company). Refer note 48.

Breakup of financial assets carried at amortised cost

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Other financial assets (Refer note 11) 967.70 2,481.96
Trade receivables (Refer note 17) 1,384.01 1,782.11
Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 18) 3291 118.68
Other bank balances (Refer note 19) 1.04 1.02
2,385.66 4,383.77

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited

Notés to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Al @mounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise siated)

22 Other equity

(a) Equity component of compound financial instruments

Opening balance
Additions / deletion during the year
Closing balance

(b) Securities premium

Opening balance
Additions / deletion during the year
Closing balance

(c¢) General reserve

Opening balance
Additions / deletion during the ycar
Closing balance

(d) Retained earnings

Opening balance

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Transitional adjustment on adoption of Ind AS 116
Closing balance

(e) Capital redemption reserve

Opening balance
Additions / deletion during the year
Closing balance

() Employee Stock Options outstanding

Opening balance

Additions / (deletion) during the year in share based payments

Closing balance

(g) Other reserve

Opening balance

sdr value of corporate guarantee received from the Holding

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
4,472.47 4,472.47
4,472.47 4,472.47
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
8,034.31 8,034.31
8,034.31 8,034.31
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1,372.73 1,372.73
1,372.73 1,372.73
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(11,086.50) (7.128.90)
(3,264.91) (3,770.68)
6.47 (1.83)
- (185.09)
(14,344.94) (11,086.50)
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
362.30 362.30
362.30 362.30
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
62.76 290.05
- (227.29)
62.76 62.76
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
89.67 66.99
= 22.68
89.67

49.30




The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited
Not€s to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise statec)

(i) Equity component of compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments of the Group comprise 1% redeemable non-cumulative preference shares. The liability
component of a compound financial instrument is initially recognised at the fair value. The equity component is initially
recognised at the difference between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of

the liability component,

Subsequent to initial recognition the liability component of a compound financial instrument is measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The equity component of a compound financial instrument is not remeasured

subsequently.

Interest related to the financial liability is recognised in profit and loss.

(ii) Securities premium

(iii)

Where the Company issued shares at a premium, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the premium received on shares
shall be transferred to a “Securities Premium” as per the provisions of applicable Companies Act. By way of a Board
resolution dated March 31, 2017, 25,437 number of class 'A’' equity shares have been allotted as fully paid up to the
Holding Company, Future Consumer Limited by converting loan amounting to INR 2,500 lakhs. The Group had issued
25,437 equity shares of INR 100 each at a premium of INR 9,728 per equity share. The reserve can be utilised only for
limited purposes in accordance with the provisions of Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013,

General reserve

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the
general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other
comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit
and loss. The amount transferred to the general reserve can be utilised only in accordance with the specific requirements

of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iv) Capital redemption reserve

v)

(vi)

23

As per the provisions of Companies Act, Capital redemption reserve is created out of the general reserve for the amount
of share capital reduction in earlier years. The capital redemption reserve account may be applied by the Group as per the

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Employee Stock Options outstanding
This reserve relates to share options granted by the Group 1o its employees under its employee share option plan. The
Group has two share option schemes under which options to subscribe for the Holding Company's shares have been

granted to certain employees.
The share-based payment reserve is used to recognise the value of equity-settled share-based payments provided to

employees, including key management personnel, as part of their remuneration. Refer to Note 50 for further details of

these plans.

Other reserve
This represents the fair value impact of corporate guarantee received from the Holding Company.

Non-controlling interests

" As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 392.61 373.77
hare of profit for the year (3.51) 18.84

389.10 392.61




The NilgiriDairy Farm Private Limited
Notes to tB¢ consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(AN amownt s in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

24 Borrtwings

Carritd at amortised cost

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Non €urrent
Secured
Term ban from bank - refer note (i) below 61.54 184.62
Less: Current maturity of term loan from bank - refer note 26 (61.54) (123.08)
- 61.54
Unsechired
Liabilily component ol compound financial instruments - refer note (i) below 2.405.20 2,134.83
Total 2,405.20 2,196.37
Current
Secured
Loans tepayable on demand from banks
Bank overdraft - refer note (iii) below 908.98 1,186.01
998.98 1,186.01
Unseeured - at amaortived cost
Inter corporaie deposits from related party - refer note (v) below 6,441.49 7,242.00
7.440.47 8.428.01

(i) Term lban from bank
Term loan from bank carries a interest rate of 11.80% - 12.3% per annum linked to 1 year MCLR ( March 31, 2020 :11.80% per annum
linked to 1 year MCLR). The loan is repayable in 13 equal quarterly instalments starting from September 2018. The loan is secured by
exclusive first charge on the current assets and on all moveable property, plant and eguipment of the Company; unconditional and
irrevocable corporate guarantee of the Holding Company, unconditional and irrevocable personal guarantee of Mr. Kishore Biyani,
subordination of preference share capital and undertaking from the Holding Company that unsecured loan of INR 6,397 lakhs (March 31,
2020 : INR 7,198 lakhs) would be retained in the Company's business till the facilities arc availed from the bank.

Loan covenants
Bank loans contain certain debt covenants relating to maintaining EBITDA positive from FY 2018 and Net Outstanding, Borrowings to

Tangible Net Worth Ratio. The Parent Company has not satisfied the debt covenant of EBITDA being positive from FY 2018 as prescribed
in the terms of bank loan. The bank will have the right to renegotiate the sanction terms and other conditions including securities and

charging penal interest.

(if) Liability component of Compound financial instrument
The Group has issued 4,684,270 (March 31, 2020 : 4,684,270) 1% Redeemable non-convertible preference shares of INR 100 per share.

The 1% Redeemable non-convertible preference shares is in the nature of compound financial instrument and accounted at fair valuc as per
requirements of Ind AS. The liability component of INR 2,405.2 lakhs (March 31, 2020 ¢ INR 2,134 .83 lakhs) is recognised at the fair
value under borrowings and the cquity component of INR 4,472.47 lakhs (March 31, 2020 : INR 4.472.47 lakhs) is recognised as cquity
component is initially recognised at the difference between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value
of the liability component. The equity component is not remeasured subsequently. 1% Redeemable non-convertible preference shares are
due for maturity in 20 years from date of allotment, i.e. October 31, 2026. The effcctive interest rate of the instrument is 12, 10% (March

31,2020: 12.10%).

(iii) Bank overdraft
The working capital loan carries variable interest rate of 1.25% p.a. above the bank's | year MCLR (March 31, 2020: 1.25% p.a. above the

bank's 1 year MCLR) as declared from time to time, The loan is repayable on demand. The working capital loan is sccured by a : Exclusive
first charge on the current assets and on all moveable property, plant and equipment of the Parent Company; unconditional and irrevocable
corporate guarantee of the Holding Company, unconditional and irrevocable personal guaraniee of Mr. Kishore Biyani, subordination of
preference share capital and undertaking from the Holding Company that unsecured loan of INR 6,397 lakhs lakhs (March 31, 2020 INR
7,242.00 lakhs) would be retained in the Parent Company's business till the fucilities are availed from the bank, At March 31, 2021, the
Group had available INR 21 Takhs (March 31, 2020: INR 14 lakhs) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities.

(v) Intercorporate deposits
The Group has availed inter-corporate deposits ('ICD') from Future Consumer Limited (Holding Company). The balance as at March 31,

2021 is INR 6,441.49 lakhs (March 31, 2020 INR 7,242.00 lakhs). The ICD carrics an interest rate of 12.5% per annum (March 31, 2020 :
12.5%) and is repayable on demand. Refer note 48
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25.1
O]

(if)

(i)

Borro%ings (continued)
The tble below details change in the Group's liabilities arising from financing activitics, including both cash and non-cash

Non current borrowing Current borrowing
I.L.Jahilil_}' compenent Inter corporate Loans repayable on
Term loan from bank of compound financial A
B deposit demand from banks
insiruments
As at April 1,2019 307.70 1,894,24 5,069.00 3,283.36
Financing cash flows (net) (123.08) - 2,173.00 (2,097.35)
Non €ash movemenis:
Changein fair value of financial
instruments - 240.59 - -
As at March 31, 2020 184.62 2,134.83 7,242.00 1,186.01
Financing cash flows (net) (123.08) - (800.51) (187.03)
Non cash movements:
Change in fair valuc of financial - 270.37 - -
instruiments
As at March 31, 2021 61.54 2,405.20) 6,441.49 998.98
Lease liabilitics
Carried at amortised cost
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Non current
Lease liabilitics 807.22 1,970.42
Less: Current maturity of lease liabilities (124.92) (245.62)
Total non-current lease liabilities 682.30 1,724.80
Current
Lease liabilities 124.92 245.62
124.92 245.62

Group as lessee
The Group has entered into lease agreements for use of buildings. These leases are for a period of 2 o 13 years, The Group's obligations

under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets.

The Group also has certain leases of premises with lease terms of 12 months or less and Ieascs of premiscs with low value, The Group
applies the “short-term lease” and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions for these leases.

Below are the carrying amounts of right-of-usc assets recognised and the movements during the year: Buildings - office premises
Right-of-use

As at April 1, 2019 1,382.71
Transferred from deferred lease rent as at April 01, 2019 25.86
Additions / (deletions) during the year a
Depreciation expense during the year (109.58)
As at March 31, 2020 1,298.99
Additions / (deletions) during the year (616.03)
Depreciation expense during the year (93.45)
589.51

As at March 31, 2021

The following is the movement in lease liabilitics during the year ended March 31, 2021

Leasc liability

As at April 01, 2019 1,924 .94

Additions / (deletions) during the year -
Aceretion of inferest 200.57
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities (42.22)
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities (112.87)
As at March 31, 2020 1,970.42
Additions / (deletions) during the year (1,151.05)
Accretion of interest 143.27
Rent waiver received (17.25)
Unpaid rent of terminated lease (138.17)

Payment of principal portion ol lease liabilities -
807.22
As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
682.30 1,724.80
124.92 245,62

807.22 1,970.42
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25.1

(iv)

(v)

25.2
(i

(ii)

Lease¢ liabilities (continued)
GrovPas lessce (continued)

The following are the amounts recognised in the statement of Profit or Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021:
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Depréeciation expenses of right of usc-assets 03.45 109,58
Interestexpenses on lease liabilities 143.27 200.57
Expense relating 1o short-term leases (included in other ex penses) . 60.71
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets (included in other expenses) 0.06 17.84
236.78 388.70

Total amount recognised in statement of profit or loss

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2021 on an undiscounted basis:

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Less than one year 84,15 380.12
one to five years 471.23 1,077.95
more than five years 759.12 2,009.76
1,314.50 3.467.83

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of INR NIL for the year ended March 31, 2021 (March 2020 : INR |55 lakhs). The Group also
had no non-cash additions to right-of-usc assets and leasc liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2021. There are no future cash outflows

relating to leases that have not yet commenced.

Transition

Effective April 1, 2019, the Group adopled Ind AS 116 “Leases™ and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019
using the modified retrospective method and has taken the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of initial application.
Consequentily, the Group recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate
and the right of use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date of the lease, bu
discounted at the Group's incremenial borrowing rate at the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31,
2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the accounting policies included as part of
financial statements for year ended March 31, 2019,

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of Right-of-use-assets (ROU) of INR 1,408.57 lakhs, net investment
in sub-lease of INR 357.14 lakhs and a lease liability of INR 1,924.94 lakhs, net of tax. The cumulative effect of applying the standard,
amounting to INR 185.09 lakhs was debited to retained earnings. The effect of this adoption is insignificant on the losses before tax, losses
for the period and carnings per share. Ind AS 116 will result in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash

outflows from financing activities on account of lease payments,

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment.
Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of
initial application

Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

Applied the standard only to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying Ind AS 17 and Appendix C of Ind AS 17 at the date

of initial application

25.3 Group as lessor

(i)

The Group has entered into operating lease arrangement for one of its office building with lease terms ranging hetween 3-5 years. Lease
income for the year ended March 31, 2021 is INR 7.4 lakhs (March 31, 2020: INR 5.15 lakhs). The Group does not have any non-

cancellable operating lease arrangements as lessor.

The following are the amounts recognised in the statement of Profit or Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021:

For the year ended For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Lease income 7.40 5.15

7.40 5.15
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26 Other fnancial labilitics

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Non-Current
Depesits received from customers 13.86 13.86
Security and other deposits received 6.36 4.11
20.22 17.97
Current
Currenl maturities of long term debt - refer note 24 61.54 123.08
Interest acerued but not due 1,052.80 401.33
Security and other deposits received T11.76 758.92
Payable on purchase of fixed assets 19.11 18.89
1,845.21 1,302.21

Interest accrued but not due includes payable to related party of INR 1045.45 lakhs (March 31, 2020: INR 399.02 lakhs) - refer note 48,

(i)
27 Provisions
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Non-current
Provision for gratuity (refer note 44) - 25.66
- 25.66

Current
Provision for compensated absences 27.90 35.52
Provision for Bonus, Incentives and others 36.98 -
Provision for pending 'C" forms - (refer note (i) below) 4.00 4.00
Provision for claims and contingencies - (refer note (1i) below) 35.00 49.00

103.88 88.52

(i) The Group have pending 'C' forms to be collected for previous years from various parties and customers. Non submission of 'C" forms may

lead (o potential liability hence the provision has been created.
(ii) The Group is invelved in certain legal disputes with some of its franchisees and landlords for commercial and other matters that have arisen

from time to time. A number of these claims/disputes relate to recovery of amrears of rent, damages claimed by franchisees ete. on
termination of the franchisee agreement. Also refer note 49.

(This space is intentionally lefi blunk)
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(i)
(i)
(iii)

(iv)

30

Qlher liabilities

As at As at
Mon current March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Deferred lease rent 13.80 16.70
2 13.80 16.70
Current
Statutory due payable 18.90 141.73
Advance received from customers 163.94 216.24
Deferred lease rent 2.90 2.90
185.74 360.87
Trade payables
Carried at amortised cost
As at As at
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - refer note (iv) below 11533 317.79
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 3,087.69 2,770.73
3,203.02 3,088.52

Includes payable of INR 1,796.74 lakhs (March 31, 2020: INR 1,364.10 lakhs) to related parties. Includes payable 1o related parties,
Refer note 48.

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 15 to 30 days terms

For explanation of Group's credit risk management - refer note 478

Disclosure required under Clause 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006
As at As at

March 31,2021  March 31, 2020

Particulars
The principal amount and the interest due thercon remaini ng unpaid to any supplier as at the end
of each accounting year:

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises

Interest due on the above
(i) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006
along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during s &
cach accounting year
(ii) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
has been paid but beyond appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest 5 n
specified under the MSMED Act, 2006

(iii} The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year . =

115.33 317.79

(iv) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

The information as required to be disclosed under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 regarding Micro
and Small enterprises determined to the extent such parlies have been identified on the basis of the information available with the Group.

Liabilities directly associated with the assets held for sale

As at As at
March 31,2021  March 31, 2020
Advance against asset held for sale - Refer note (i) below 2,095.25 1,111.00
2,095.25 1,111.00

(i) The Company has received an advance of INR 2,095.25 lakhs (Previous year INR 1,111 lakhs) against the land and building reclassified

as asset held for sale. Refer note 5(ii).

Breakup of financial liabilitics carried at amortised cost

As at As at
March 31,2021  March 31, 2020
WS er_cr Note 24) 9,845.67 10,624.38 /\6‘5’ AP
| liabilities (Refer Note 26) 1,865.43 | ,SZG.I&_G:{L: fﬂ}
idf (Refer Note 25) 807.22 |,970.2§5
(Refer Note 29) 3,203.02 3,088.52;
ycial liabilities carried at amortised cost 15,721.34 !7,0{!'3.54'\']}._\;
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31 ReYenue from contracts with customers
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Saleof products 5,545.61 16,871.84
Salei of services - 533
Royilty income - refer note (i) below 138.26 240.00
Other Operating revenues
Franchisee fees - refer note (ii) below 511.36 686.18
Technical know how - refer note (iii) below 26.97 53.00
Others - refer note (iv) below 59.68 6.32

6,281.88 17,862.67

(i) Royalty income : Royalty income is a payment received for utilizing the resources comprising of the fixed and current assets,
labour and other infrastructural facilities of the Group.

(ii) Franchisee fee: The Group earns franchisee fee by allowing the franchisee partners to use its brand and certain common facilities
made available by the Group.

(iii) Technical know how: The Group carns technical know how fee from franchisee partners for providing consultation and guidance
for starting the franchise and for conducting training on system and process.

(iv) Others : Ineludes listing fee and display income received from outside parties for listing of their products in Nilgiris product
master list or display activities in Nilgiris stores.

(v) Revenue from related parties. Refer note 48,

31.1 Details of revenue from contracts with customers recognised by the Group, net of indirect taxes in its statement of Profit and
loss. The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers.

(i) Based on type of goods / service
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Sale of consumer products 5,345.61 16,871.84
Franchisee fees 511.36 686.18
Royalty income 138.26 240.00
Technical know how 26.97 53.00
Sale of services - 5.33
Miscellancous Income 59.68 6.32
Total revenue from contract with customer 6,281.88 17,862.67
(i) Based on geography
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
India 6,281.88 17,862.67
Outside India i 2
6,281.88 17,862.67
(iii) Based on time of revenue recognition
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Goods transferred at a point in time 6,116.65 17,564.34
Services transferred over time 165.23 298.33
0,281.88 17,862.67
31.2 The Group derives its revenue from the business of Branding, Manufacturing, Processing, Selling and Distribution of “Consumer

Products™ which constitutes a single service line.

31.3 Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the confracted price

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

6,506.28 18,637.06 o=
(224.40) (174.39) A OAIR PN
6,281.88 17,862.67/ -;_.-” g
.
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32

33

Perfirmance obligation

The Group has applied practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115 for not disclosing the rema ining performance obligation for

the Contracts that have original expected duration of one year or lesser.
Contract balances
Trade receivables

Contract assets
Contract liability

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1,384.01 1,782.11
78.13 113.80
163.94 216.24

Trade receivables are non interest bearing and are generally on terms of 1 to 30 days. The Group receives payments from
customers based upon contractual billing schedules. Trade receivables are recorded when the right to consideration becomes

unconditional, amounts overdue continue to be interest free.

Contract assets includes amounts related to our contractual right o consideration for completed performance objectives not yel

invoiced,

Conlract liabilities include payments received in advance of performance under the contract, and are realized with the associated

revenue recognized under the contract.

Set out below is the amount of revenue recognised from:

Amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year

Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in the contract
liability balance at the beginning of the period

Revenue recognised from performance obligations satistied in previous years

Other income

Rental income

- Lease rental income on property leases (Refer note 25)
Interest income

- On deposits (at amortised cost)

- On subleased premises

- Income tax and VAT refund

Other non-operating income

- Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
- Provision no longer required written back (net)

- Gain on termination of lease asset

- Net gain on financial assets measured at FVTPL

- Miscellancous income

Total

Cost of raw materials and components consumed
Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

Less: inventory at the end of the year
Cost of raw material and components consumed

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

216.24

210.24

27595

27595

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

7.40 5.15

3.45 1.14

- 35.22

2.27 0.49

- 0.56

- 26.00
257.84 -
0.43 -

32.83 44.69

304.22 113.25

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
621.15 337.08
953.74 7,215.41
1,574.89 7,552.49
(186.65) (621.15)
1,388.24 6,931.34
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34 Chvnges in inventories of finished goods and traded goods

Finished goods

Invéntory at the beginning of the year
Lest: inventory at the end of the year
Decrease in finished goods

Trading goods

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Less: inventory at the end of the year
Dectease in traded goods

Total decrease in inventory

35 Employce benefit expenses

Salarties, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity expense - refer note 44

Expenses on employee stock option scheme (ESOP) - refer note (i) below and 50

Staffwelfare expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

79.98 94.73
(18.34) (79.98)

61.64 14.75

152.22 194.44
(129.93) (152.22)

22.29 42.22

83.93 56.97

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

356.14 828.33
14.43 44.55
11.10 20.22

- (230.97)
3.80 29.66
385.53 691.79

(i) The employee stock option cost of unvested shares forfeited in the previous year on resignation of employees is accounted in

statement of profit and loss.

36 Finance cosis

Interest on loans from bank

Interest on loan from related parties (refer note 48)

Interest on lease liabilities (Refer note 25)

Interest on debl component of Preference shares (refer note 48)
Other interest cost

37 Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of tangible assets (refer note 5)
Amortization and impairment of intangible assets (refer note 9)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (refer note 10)

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
115.34 214.25
901.07 810.56
143.27 200.57
270.37 240.59
8.28 58.44
1,438.33 1,524.41

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
355.89 402.00
38.48 47.30
93.45 109.58
487.82 558.88

(This space is intentionally lefi blank)
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38 Other expenses

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Warchousing and distribution expenses 866.50 1,561.86
Infrastructure management fee - 269.64
Labour contract charges 39.72 158.60
Electricity expenses 29.27 127.64
Lease payments on low value assets and short term leases (refer note 25) 0.06 78.55
Travelling and conveyance 3.52 75.82
Security service charges 2517 33.87
Repairs and maintenance
- Plant and machinery 1.03 63.69
- Buildings 0.52 0.49
- Others 1.86 4.39
Legal and professional charges 34.22 50.48
Payment to auditors (refer note (i) below) 43.21 34.05
Rates and taxes 117.33 5122
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 1,339.54 40.00
Consumables and packing material 11.03 26.90
Advertisement, publicity and selling expenses - 21.31
Insurance 11.26 11.54
Director's sitting fees 4.10 3.50
Loss on Sale/Retirement of property, plant and equipment 3.06 -
Net loss on financial assets measured at FVTPL - 2.06
Miscellaneous expenses 106.39 144,74

2,637.79 2,760.35

(i) Payment to auditors

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Statutory audit fee 34.21 25.05
Limited review 9.00 9.00
43.21 34.05

39  Exceptional item

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Impairment of Goodwill - refer note (i) below - 799.04
Impairment of Plant and Machinery - refer note (ii) below 100.00 250.00
100.00 1,049.04

(i) In the previous year, the recoverable amount of the investment in Nilgiri's Mechanised Bakery Private Limited has been
determined based on a equity valuation calculated using cash flow projections covering a four-year period. As a result of this
analysis, Management has fully recognised an impairment of Goodwill of INR 799.04 lakhs in the previous year. The
impairment charge is recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss as an exceptional item.

(ii) During the current year the Management has carried out impairment testing for plant and machinery and concluded that the
value in usc of plant and machinery is lower than carrying value of assets. As a result of this analysis, Management has
recognised an additional impairment charge of INR 100 lakhs (previous year 250.00 lakhs) in the current year against the
plant and machinery, previously carried at INR 1,019.84 lakhs. The impairment charge is recorded in the Statement of Profit

OAIRP

and Loss as an exceptional item.

(This space is intentionally lefi blank)
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(a)

(b)

(©)

Income tax expense

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

Statement of profit or loss

Current tax

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods
Deferred tax charge / (credit)

29.79

29.79

Statement of other comprehensive income

On remeasurement of defined bencefit obligation

Income tax recognized directly in equity

Income tax recognized directly in equity

Reconciliation of tax expense and tax based on accounting profit:

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Loss before tax - -
Indian income tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Al India's statutory income tax rate of 25.17% (March 31, 2020: 25. 17%) 0.00 0.00
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year = -
Tax credit utilisation/reversal - =
Deferred tax not recognised on current year temporary difference (refer note - 0.00
(i) below)
MAT/ Deferred tax reversed for earlier years on account of adoption of 0.00 29.79
concessional tax rate

- 29.79

Reconciliation of effective tax rate is not reported as no tax expense has been recognised for year ended March 31, 2021,
Deferred tax asset has not been recognised in the books, because it is not probable that future taxable profits will be available

against which the Company can use the benefits.

(This page is intentionally lefi blank)
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The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited

Not€$ to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All “mounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

42 Components of other comprehensive income

43

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss
Remeasurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 6.47 (1.83)
Income tax effect -
6.47 (1.83)

Earnings per share (EPS)

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS compulations:
For the ycar ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company (a) (INR in lakhs) (3,264.91) (3,770.68)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year for basic and 241435 2,41,435
diluted EPS (b)
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in INR) (a/b) (1,352.29) (1,561.78)
Equity share reconciliation for EPS
Opening balance (nos.) 241,435 2,41,435
Effect of fresh issue of sharcs = -
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic EPS (nos.) 2,41,435 2,41,435

The Group does not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares and therefore diluted earning per share is the same as basic
earning per share.

(This page is intentionally left blank)
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44
A

(i)
(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

()

(M

Employee benefit plans

Defined contribution plans - Provident Fund
The Group's contribution to provident fund, superannuation fund and employce state insurance are determined under the relevant

Sthemes and / or statute and charged to the statement of profit and loss.

The Group's contribution to Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund for the year ended March 31, 2021 aggregating to INR
14.43 lakhs (March 31, 2020: INR 44.55 lakhs) has been recognized in the statement of profit and loss under the head employee

benefits expense.

Defined benefit plans (funded) - Gratuity

The Group has provided for gratuity liability, for its employees as per actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary on
the Balance Sheet date. The valuation has been carried out using the Project Unit Credit Method as per Ind AS 19 to determine the
present value of defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost. This is a defined benefit plan as per Ind AS 19.
The benefit payable is the greater of the amount calculated as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 as amended from time to
time or the Group scheme applicable to the employee. The benefit vests upon completion of five years of continuous service and
once vested it is payable to employees on retirement or on termination of employment. The gratuity benefits payable to the
employees arc based on the employee’s service and last drawn salary at the time of leaving. The employees do not contribute
towards this plan and the full cost of providing these benefits are met by the Group. In case of death whilc in service, the gratuity

is payable irrespective of vesting,

The plan is governed by the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended from time to time). Employees are
entitled to all the benefits enlisted under this act.

Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framework which may vary
over the period of time. Thus, the Group is exposed (o various risks in providing the above benefit which are as follows:

Risk exposure to defined benefit plans - Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and the Group is exposed to the following risks:

The plan exposes the Group to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase
in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the

liability as shown in financial statements.

Interest risk

For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may
not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the present value of the assets is
independent of the future discount rate. This can result in wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded
status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.,

Investment Risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of
employces in future. Deviation in the rate of interest in future for employees from the rate of increase in
salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

Salary risk

The Group has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Group is

Lengevity risk
exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumption.

Regulatory risk Gratuity benefits are paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act,1972 (as
amended from time to time). There is a risk of change in regulations requiring higher gratuity pay-outs.
Market Risk Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial

markets. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads to decrease in
Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption depends on the yiclds on the
corporate/government bonds and hence the valuation of liability is exposed to Muctuations in the yields as at

the valuation date.




The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited
NoteSto the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al ahovents in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

44 Employce benefit plans (continued)
B Defined benefit plans (funded) - Gratuity (continued)

(i) The following table sets out movement in defined benefits liability and the amount recognised in the financial statements:

Defined benefit

Fair value of

Net Amount

obligation (A) plannced assets (B) (A-B)
As at April 1,2019 119.16 42.58 76.58
Amount recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss
Current service cost 15.56 - 15.56
Interest expense on defined benefit obligation 7.74 - 7.74
Interest income on plan assets - 3.08 (3.08)
Total amount recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss 23.30 3.08 20.22
Benefits paid (72.97) E (72.97)
Acquisition / Divestiture/ transfer out - - -
Remeasurement
Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from changes n financial 2.72 - 2.72
assumptions
Actuarial  (gains) and losses arising  {rom experience (0.89) - (0.89)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 1.83 - 1.83
As at March 31, 2020 71.32 45.66 25.67
Defined benefit Fair value of Net Amount
obligation (A) planned assets (B) (A-B)
As at April 1, 2020 71.32 45.66 25.67
Amount recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss
Current Service cost 9.95 - 9.95
Interest expense on defined benefit obligation 4.09 - 4.09
Interest income on plan assets - 2.95 (2.95)
Total amount recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss 14.05 2.95 11.10
Benefits paid (31.00) B (31.00)
Acquisition / Divestiture/ transfer out - - -
Remeasurement
Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from changes in financial (0.27) 0.22 (0.50)
assumptions
Actuarial - gains  and losses arising from changes in - 0.02 (0.02)
demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from experience (9.82) - (9.82)
adjustments
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (10.10) 0.25 (10.34)
44,26 48.85 (4.58)

As at March 31, 2021

(iii) Category wise plan assets

The fair value of the plan assets at the end of the reporting period for each calegory, are as follows:

Life Insurance Corporation - (These plan asscts are unquoted instruments. )

As at March 31,
2021

As at March 31,
2020

48.85
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44 Employee benefit plans (continued)
B Defined benefit plans (funded) - Gratuity (continued)

(iv) Principal assumptions

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:
As at March 31, As at March 31,

2021 2020

Discount rate 6.57% 6.46%
Salary escalation 6.00% 6.00%
Allrition rate 10.00% 12.00%
Mortality rate (IALM 2012-14) (IALM 2012-14)

Ultimate Ultimate
Retirement age 58 years 58 years
Expected rate of return on assets 7.25% 7.25%

Note
The estimate of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes account of in flation, seniority , promotion and other
relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

(v) Sensitivity analysis:
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected salary increase.
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions

oceurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant:

o . . Sensitivity level Impact on DBO
Earticulas (Graniliy March 31,2021 March 31,2020  March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Discount rate 1.00%, 1.00% (41.84) (66.37)
-1.00% -1.00% 46.79 73:57
Salary increase rale 1.00% 1.00% 46.78 73.55
-1.00% =1.00% (41.81) (66.33)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is
unlikely that the change in assumptions would oceur in isolation of one another as some of the assumplions may be correlated.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from previous years,

(vi) The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 2020
9.58 14.26
14.96
44.32

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)
Between 2 and 5 years
Beyond 5 years

(This page is intentionally lefi blank)
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45 Capital management

FO1 the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued equily capital, securities premium and all other equity reserves
attibutable to the equity holders of the Group. The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it mects financial covenants
attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would
pemmit the bank to immediately call Ioans and borrowings. There has been breache in the financial covenants of interest-bearing loans and
borrowing in the current period by the Parent Company.

The Group manages ils eapital structure and makes adjustment, in light of changes in cconomic conditions or business requirements. The Group
motitors capital using a gearing ratio which is net debt divided by total equity plus net debt as shown below

- Net debt includes borrowings (long term and short term) less cash and cash equivalents and

- Total equity comprises of issued share capital and all other equity components atiributable to equity share holders

The gearing ratio at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 are as follows.

Asat March 31, Asat March 31,

2021 2020

Noneurrent borrowings (refer note 24) 2,405,20 2,196.37
Curtent borrowings (refer note 24) 7.440.47 8,428.01
Current maturities of long term debt (refer note 26) 61.54 123.08
Total debt 9,907.21 10,747.46
Cashand cash equivalents (refer note 18) (32.91) (118.68)
Net debt (A) 9,874.30 10,628.78
Break up of equity
Equity share capital (refer note 21) 241.44 241,44
Other equity (refer note 22) 49.30 3.307.74
Total Equity (B) 290.73 3,549.17
Total debt and equity (C }=(A)+(B) 10,165.03 14,177.95

97.14% T4.97%

Gearing ratio (A)(C)

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.

46 Fair value measurement
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group’s financial instruments, other than those with carrying

amounms that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Carrying value Fair value
Asat March 31, Asat March  Asat March 31, As at March 31,
2021 31,2020 2021 2020
(i) The earrying value of financial assets by categorics is as follows:
Measured at cost
Investments 1.37 0.95 1.37 0.95
1.37 0.95 1.37 0.95
Measured at amortised cost
Loans - - - -
Others financial assels 967.70 2.481.90 967.70 2,481,906
Trade receivables 1,384.01 1,782.11 1,384.01 1,782.11
Cash and cash equivalents 3291 118.68 32.91 118.68
Bank balance other than Cash and cash equivalents 1.04 1.02 1.04 1.02
2,385.66 4,383.77 2,385.66 4,383.77
Total financial assets 2,387.03 4,384.72 2,387.03 4,384.72
(ii) The carrying value of financial liability by categorics is as follows:
Measured at amortised cost
Borrowings 92.907.21 10,747 .46 9,907.21 10,747.46
Lease liabilities 807.22 1,970.42 807.22 1,970.42
Other financial liabilitics 1,803.89 1,197.10 1,803.89 1,197.10
Trade payables 3,203.02 3,088.52 3,203.02 3,088.52
15,721.34 17,003.50 15,721.34 17,003,50
Total financial liabilities = 15,721.34 17,003.50 15,721.34 17,003.50

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.




The MNilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited
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46 FAir value measurement (continued)
(iii) F'#ir value hierarchy

Fitincial assets and financial liabilitics measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three levels of a fair value
hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

L.evel 2—Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assel or liabilivy, either dircetly (i.c. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices),

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilitics that are not based on abservable market data (unobscrvable inputs),

The following table provides the fair value measurement hicerarchy of financial asscts and liabilitics of the Group as at March 31, 2021 and March
31,2020:

Quiantitative disclosure fair value measurement hierarchy as at Mareh 31, 2021

Dateof Quoted prices in Significant Significant .
aliatio i A observable unn.hservah!e Carrying value
inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Measured at cost
Quoted equity shares 31-Mar-21 1.37 - 1.37
Assets measured at amortised cost
Others financial assets 31-Mar-21 - - 967,70 Y67.70
Trade receivables 31-Mar-21 - - 1,384.01 1,384.01
Cash and cash equivalents 31-Mar-2] - - 3291 3291
Bank balance other than Cash and cash equivalents 31-Mar-21 - - 1.04 1.04
137 - 2.385.66 2,387.03
Liabilities measured at amortised cost
Borrowings 31-Mar-21 - - 9.907.21 9,907.21
Lease liabilities 31-Mar-21 - - 807.22 807.22
Trade payables 31-Mar-21 - - 1.803.89 1,803.89
Other financial liabilities 31-Mar-21 - - 3.203.02 3.203.02
5 = 15,721.34 15,721.34
Quantitative disclosure fair value measurement hierarchy as at March 31, 2020
Date of Quoted prices in Significant igniNagns _
valuation A ik observable unu_hservalllc Carrying value
inputs inputs
(Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3) o
Measured at cost
Quoted equity shares 31-Mar-20 0.95 - - 0.95
Assets measured at amortised cost
Others linancial assets 31-Mar-20 - - 2,481.96 2,481.96
Trade receivables 31-Mar-20 - - 1,782.11 1,782.11
Cash and cash equivalents 31-Mar-20 - - 118.68 118.68
Bank balance other than Cash and cash equivalents 3 1-Mar-20 2 - 1.02 1.02
0.95 . 4,383.77 4,384.72
Liabilities measured at amortised cost
Borrowings 31-Mar-20 - - 10,747.46 10,747.46
Lease liabilitics 3 1-Mar-20 - 1,970.42 1,970.42
Trade payables 31-Mar-20 - - 1,197.10 119710
Other financial liabilities 31-Mar-20 - - 3,088.52 3,088.52
= = 17,003.50 17,003.50

Al the end of the reporting period, there are no significant concentrations of eredit risk for
represents the Group's maximum exposure o credit risk for such financial assets.

There bave been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the period.
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47 Fimancial risk management objectives

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprises of loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial
liabilitics is 1o finance the Group's operations. The Group's principal financial assets comprises of trade and other receivables, and cash and cash

eqivalents that are derived directly from its operations,

The Group’s everyday activities expose it to market risk (which covers mostly interest rate risks), credit risk and liquidity risk. The objective of
financial risk management in the Group is to minimize the impact of markel factors mainly interest rales,

Financial Risk is closcly monitored by the Group CFO as well as Centralized treasury team of the Holding Company and critical developments if’
any, arc updated to the CFO of the Holding Company and the Board,

(A) Market risks

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market prices. The
Group is exposed in the ordinary course of its business to risks related to interest rates and equity prices.

(i) Imterest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates,

The Group's borrowing comprises loan from the Holding Company and debt portion of compound financial instrument which carries a fixed rate of
interest, which do not expose it to interest rate risk. However loan from bank (cash credit, working capital demand loan and buyer's credit) has a
floating interest rate, exposing it to the interest rate risk.

() Interest rate risk exposure
The exposure of the Group's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the year are as follows:

As at March 31, As at March 31, )

2021 2020
Variable rate borrowings (including INR 61.54 lakhs (March 31, 2020 INR 123,08 lakhs) 1,060.52 1,370.63
included in other financial liabilities)
Total borrowings 1,060,52 1,370.63

(b) Interest rate risk management:
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk because the Group borrows funds at Moating interest rates, CFO monitors closely the Group's funding
requirements at better interest rates. The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity

risk management scetion of this nofe,

Interest rate risk sensitivity:

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for non- derivative instruments at the end of the
reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

-—

(c

IFinterest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, following is the impact on profit or loss. A positive
is decrease in Joss/increase in equity and negative is increase in loss/decrease in equity.

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31,2020
50 basis points 50 basis points 50 basis points 50 basis points
inerease decrease increase decreasce
Impacton loan from banks (5.30) 5.30 (6.85) 6.85

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilitics arc detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.

(ii) Foreign Currency risk
The Group has not entered into foreign currency transactions for the period covered by these consolidated financial statements. Accordingly the
Group has no exposure to foreign exchange gain and losses on its consolidated financial position, performance and cash flows.

B Credif risk

(a) Exposures to credit risk:
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. Credit risk arises
from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as from credit exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables,

(b) Credit risk management
The Group has adopted a poliey of only dealing with creditwort hy counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are
reviewed and approved annually. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable. The Group does not

have significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating

agencies.

(c) Collateral held as security and other eredit enhancements

Hit period on sales of goods is 0 10 30 days. No interest is charged on trade receivables.

) Hed a practical expedicnt by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The
ision mbffix/ftakes into account historical credit loss experienced and adjusted for forward- Jooking information. The expected credit loss
50aded on ageing of the days the receivables are due and the rates as given in the provision matrix. The provision matrix at the end of

iod is as follows:
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0 Financial risk management objectives{continued)
B Credit risk (continued)
(d) EXpected eredit loss (continued)
(i) The provision matrix at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

1-90 days past  90-120 days past  121-150 days I51-180 days More than 180

pa e
Wit condl parod dues dues past dues past dues days past dues
Expected credit loss (0 (% 10% 25% 50% 100%
(7o)
(ii) Ageing of trade recefvable
1-90 days 91-120 days 121150 days  151-180 days M""ijm“ 150 Total

As it March 31, 2021
Trade receivables 721.38 13534 60.45 87.85 1,003.76 2,008.79
Allowance for expected (2.08) (137 {4.39) (616.95) (624.78)
loss
Net Trade receivables 721.38 133.27 59.08 83.40 JH6.82 1,384.01
As at March 31, 2020
Trade receivables 1,166.72 108.48 R1.01 58.55 773.02 2,187.78
Allowance for expected = (2.33) (5.98) (18.87) (37R.49) {405.67)
loss
Net Trade receivables 1,166.72 106.15 75.03 39.08 394.53 1,782.11

The expected credit loss is computed on the credit risk of trade receivables after adjusting the security deposits received from franchise stores.

(iii) Movement in the eredit loss allowance

As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year (405.67) (365.67)
Addilions during the year (219.11) (40.00)
Bad debts written of T _ B
(624.78) (405.67)

Balance at the end of the year
The coneentration of credit risk is limited due to the fact that the customer base is large.

(C) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilitics that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of directors, which has
established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group's short, medium and long-term lunding and
liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities,
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. Note below sets
out details of additional undrawn facilities that the Group has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk.

(a) Liquidity and interest risk tables

(i) Financial liabilities
The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its financial linbilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have
been drawn up hased on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required Lo pay.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Group may be required

1oy pay:

—

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilitics based on contractual undiscounted paymenis.

3
Avak Rzl On demand Sl 3 to 12 months 1to 5 years Above § years Total
months
Lease Liabilities - 19.85 64.30 471.23 75912 1,314,50
Borrowings* 7,44047 B - - - 744047
Trade payables 3,203.02 = - - - 3,203.02
Other financial liabilitics 1,783.67 30.77 30.77 - - 1.845.21
. . L
AxatMarcd 31,2020 On demand u;:::j:]: 3 Less than 1 year 1to5 years Above 5 years Total
Lease Liabilities 108.36 65.99 205,77 1,077.95 2,000.76 31,467.83
Borrowings* 8,428.01 - - 61,54 - 8,489.55
Trade payables 3,088.52 - - - - 308852
Other financial labilitics 1,179.14 30.77 92.31 - - 1,302.22

* Borrowings are shown excluding interest amount,
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48  Related party transactions

()  Names of related partics where control exists:

Holding Company Future Consumer Limited
(i) Names of other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year :

Aadhaar ~ Wholesale  ‘Trading  and
Distribution Limited

Integrated Food Park Limited (Formerly
known as Integrated Food Park Private
Sublime Foods Limited (Formerly known
as Sublime Foods Private Limited)

Hain Future Natural Products Private
Limited

MNS Foods Limited (Formerly known as
MMNS Foods Private Limited)

Fonterra Future Dairy Private Limited

Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
duint Venture of Holding Compnay
Joint Venture of Holding Compnay
Jaint Venture of Holding Compnay

Joint Venture of Holding Compnay

(iii) Key management personncl

Director B S Jagadish
Director (upto September 25,2020) Pankaj Khemka
Director (w.e.f January 30, 2019) Jude Savio Linhares
Director Adhiraj Anil Harish
KMP of holding Company Kishore Biyani
Relative of KMP of holding Company Vijay Biyani

(iv) Entities controlled! having significant influence by KMP of Holding Company
Eniities controlled/ having significant influence by KMP of Holding Company Future Retail Limited

Entities controlled/ having significant influence by KMP of Holding Company Future  Corporate  Resources  Private
Limited (Previously known as Suhani

Trading & Investment Consultants Private
Limited)

(v} Additional related parties as per Companies Act, 2013 with whom transactions have taken place during the year :
Chief Financial Officer (upto September 6, 2019) Manoj Kumar Agarwal
Chicl Financial Officer (w.c.f December 6, 2019 upto February 28, 2021) Nipun Kumar Sundarka

Daksh Baja)

Company Sceretary (upto May 22, 2019)
Shweta Agarwal Sarkari

Company Secretary (from November §, 2019 to January 31, 2020)

Company Seeretary (w.e.l February 24, 2020) Tanmay Bhat

Transactions entered into with related partics during the year and balances as at the year end are as follows:
For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(A

(i) Sales of goods

Future Retail Limited 88699 3,146.58
Future Consumer Limited 250.23 570.95
MNS Foads Limited (Formerly known as MNS Foods Private Limited) 9.05 -

- 1.14

Aadhaar Wholesale Trading and Disiribution Limited

Sublime Foods Limited (Formerly known as Sublime Foods Private Limited) .25 017
Integrated Food Park Limited (Formerly known as Integrated Food Park Private Limited) 0.75 0.67
(ii) Purchase of goods
Future Consumer Limited 207314 3,254.60
Hain Future Natural Products Private Limited 0.86 -
MNS Foods Limited (Formerly known as MNS Foods Private Limited) 0.15 -
(iii) Rent expense
Integrated Food Park Limited (Formerly known as Integrated Food Park Private Limited) 57.29 79.59
Vijay Biyani** - 78.00
(iv) Other Expenses
Future Retail Limited 3.84 -
(v) Rent income
Integrated Food Park Limited (Formerly known as Integrated Food Park Private Limited) 4.50 -
(vi) Franchisee fees
Future Retail Limited - 38.04
:st on debt component of Preference shares
sumer Limited* 270.37 240,59
[ 9% n from related parties
em: r Limited 895.57 B10.56
wn
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(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)
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Related Party Disclosure (continued)
Transactions entered into with related parties during the year and balances as at the year end are as follows: (continued)
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Expense incurred by the related party on behalf of the Company and reimbursed to the related party

(#) Eleetricity expenses

Integrated Food Park Limited (Formerly known as Integrated Food Park Private Limited) 10.80 4.50

(b) Repairs and maintenance - Plant and Machinery

Integeated Food Park Limited (Formerly known as Integrated Food Park Private Limited) - 0.27

(¢) Sale of Property, plant and equipment

Fitture Corporate Resources Private Limited (Previously known as Subani Trading & Investment - 321.13

Consultants Private Limited)

(d) Salaries, wages and bonus

Future Retail Limited - 572

Expense incurred by the Company on behalf of the related party and reimbursed by the related party

() Staff Welfare Expenses

Future Consumer Limited - 4.59

Integrated Food Park Limited (Formerly known as Integrated Food Park Private Limited) - 0.9]

Sublime Foods Limited (Formerly known as Sublime Foods Private Limited) - 0,28

(D) Rent

Future Comporate Resources Private Limited (Previously known as Suhani Trading & Investment - 78.00

Consultants Private Limited)**

{e) Consumables and packing material

Future Consumer Limited - 5.50

(d) Electricity expenses

Future Consumer Limited - 3.96

(e) Warehousing and distribution expenses

Future Consumer Limited 18.77

() Advertisement, publicity and selling cxpenses

Futre Corporate Resources Private Limited (Previously known as Suhani Trading & Investment - 35.41

Consultants Private Limited)

(g) Repairs and mainfenance

Future Consumer Limited - 0.69

(h) Miscellancous expenses

Future Corporate Resources Private Limited (Previously known as Suhani Trading & Investment - 1 1.86

Consultants Private Limited)

Future Consumer Limited - 0.45

Integrated Food Park Limited (Formerly known as Integrated Food Park Private Limited) - 0.56

Sublime Foods Limited (Formerly known as Sublime Foods Private Limited) - 0.03

Sales Promotion Expenses

Future Retail Limited 42.29

ICD loan reccived & repaid

Future Consumer Limited-1CD loan received 200.00 7,242.00
1,000.51 5,069.00

Future Consumer Limited-1CD loan repaid

* Represents unwinding of discount consequent to Ind AS adjustment,
** Rent expense disclosed in the statement of profit and loss account is net of INR Nil (March 31, 2020: INR 78 lakhs) recovered from Future

Corporate Resowrces Private Limited.
(This page is intentionally lefi blank)
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(B)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

x)

(xi)

(©)

(D)

Related Party Disclosure (continued)
The balances receivable from and payable to related parties are as follows :

Trade receivables
Future Retail Limited

Future Consumer Limited

Fonterra Future Dairy Private Limited

Aadhaar Wholesale Trading and Distribution Limited

Sublime Foods Limited (Formerly known as Sublime Foods Private Limited)

Integrated Food Park Limited (Formerly known as Integrated Food Park Private Limited)

Other receivables

Future Consumer Limited

Integrated Food Park Limited (Formerly known as Integrated Food Park Private Limited)

Future Corporate Resources Private Limited (Previously known as Suhani Trading & Investment
Consultants Private Limited)

Trade payable

Integrated Food Park Limited (Formerly known as Integraled Food Park Private Limited)
Future Consuimer Limited

Future Retail Limited

Hain Future Natural Products Private Limited

Lease Liabilities
Integrated Food Park Limited (Formerly known as Integrated Food Park Private Limited)

Rent deposit
Integrated Food Park Limited (Formerly known as Integrated Food Park Private Limited)

Loan payable (Intercorporate deposits)
Future Consumer Limited

Preference shares - Debt component
Future Consumer Limited (refer note 24)

Interest payable
Future Consumer Limited

Ouistanding financial guarantee given
Future Consumer Limited

Outstanding financial guarantee received
Future Consumer Limited*

As al
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

374.37
145,96
2.34

0.81
12,13

4.50
1,005.81

1,796.74

329

6,397.49

2,405.20

1,045.45

15,000.00

1,060.52

446,91
183.18

0.51
2.25

17.90

1,120.43

5.30
1,358.08
0.72

25.61

34.87

7,242.00

2,134.83

399.02

15,000.00

1,370.63

* Kishore Biyani has also given financial guaranice w.r. same for an amount of INR 1,060.52 lakhs(31 March 2020 : INR 1,370.63 lakhs)

Freehold land & building of the Group with a net book value of INR 11,582.99 lakhs (March 2020 : INR 11,582.99 lakhs) are hypothecated to
Catalyst Trusteeship Limited against non-convertible debentures (NCDs) issued and term loan taken by the Future Consumer Limited (the

Haolding Company). Refer nate 20.

Compensation to key managerinl personnel

Short-term employee benefits
Share-based payments

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
12.13 39.67
B (230.97)

Note : The remuncration to the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave benefits for the year

ended March 31, 2021 as they are determined on an actuarial basis for the Group as a whole.,

Transactions with key managerial personnel

Directors sitting fees

March 31, 2021

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2020

0.80

0.80

All the related party transactions entered during the period were in ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis. All the related party

transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for review and approval.
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(i)

(2)

(b)

(i)

Contingent liabilities and commitments

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Contingent liabilities
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts:
Disputed Income tax demands - refer note (i) below 359.00 373.08
Disputed sales tax matters - refer note (ii) below 122,97 35946
Disputed Central Excise demand - refer note (iii) below 16.15 16.15
Legal claim contingeney - refer note (iv) and (v) below 40.00 40,00

15,000.00 15,000.00

Outstanding financial guarantee given - refer note (vi) below

Commitments
Estimate amount of contract remaining to be exeeuted on capital account and not provided for

Notes:
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debis include demand from the Indian Income tax authoritics for the payment of income tax

of INR 437.50 lakhs against which the company has ereated the provision of INR 78,50 lakhs (March 31, 2020 : INR 451.58 lakhs against
which the company has created the provision of INR 78.50 lakhs) relating to Assessment Years 2007-08, 2008-09, 2009-10, 2010-11 and

2013-14 as mentioned below in (a) and (b).

Income Tax Appellate Tribunal has upheld the demand raised for Assessment Years 2007-08, 2008-09 and 2009-10 totalling to INR 50.48
lakhs (March 31, 2020: INR 50.48 lakhs) in relation to payments made to a Singapore resident towards consultancy charpes and held that
the payments partake the character of fees for technical services both under the Income tax Act and the India-Sinpapore Treaty, and
accordingly, are liable for deduction of withholding taxes. During the year ended 31 March, 2015 the Company paid TNR 15.00 lakhs and
balance amount of INR 35.48 lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2017 under protest and filed an Appeal with the High Court of

Karnataka.

Further, Income Tax demand has been raised against the Company for Assessment Years 2007-08, 2009-10, 2010-11,2013-14 and 2014-15
totalling to INR 437.00 lakhs (March 31, 2019: INR 401.10 lakhs) on disallowance of certain expenses and disallowances under section
40(a)(i) for non-deduction of taxes on payment of fees for consultancy services to a non-resident and disallowance of prior period expenses.
Against the said demand, tax authorities have adjusted refund duc to the Company of INR 104.76 lakhs of AY 2008-09 and 2012-13
against the Income Tax demand for AY 2007-08 and 2010-11. The Company has paid INR 5.00 lakhs under protest against the demand for
AY 2010-11 during the year ended March 31, 2017, The matler is pending before High Court for AY 2007-08 and ITAR for AY 2010-11.
The matter is pending before Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeal) for AY 2013-14 & CIT (Appeals) for AY. 2014-15.

Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts include demand from the Sales Tax authoritics are as follows :

The Group had received demand notice along with order under Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 for INR 76.11 lakhs (March 31, 2020 : INR
64.72 lakhs) for non submission of F and C forms.

The Group has received notice ufs 9(2) of CST Act read with section 36(1) of KVAT Act 2003 dated March 3, 2020 for FY 2015-16
wherein a demand for INR 292,18 lakhs along with interest and penalty imposed duc to non-submission of books, registers, forms, invoices
ctc. The Group has submitted the documents post year end, The cases are pending before Assistant Commissioner of Commercial taxes.

The Group received demand notice along with order under Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 for INR 2.56 lakhs for non submission of C forms,
The Group has filed the request letter to rectify the said order on March 06, 2017.

The Group is contesting the above mentioned demands and the Management belicves that its position will likely be upheld in the appellate
process. The Management belicves that the outcome of these proceedings will not have material adverse effect on the Group's financial

position and results of operations.
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(iii)

{iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Contingent liabilities and commitments (continued)

Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts include demand from the Commissioner of Central Excise of for the payment of excise
duty and education cess of INR 16.15 lakhs (March 31, 2020 : INR 16.15 lakhs). The Group has preferred an appeal with CESTAT

authoritics and the case is pending with the same.

The Group has received notice in the carlier year from one of the franchisees and has filed an appeal with the High Court against the
decision of Sessions Court. 1t has also deposited INR 20 Lakhs under protest with the Honourable High Court of Karnataka. The Group
belicves basis discussion with its external legal counsel, the Group is confident of the positive outcome for the above appeal filed with the
High Court, accordingly no provision has been created in books.

The Group is involved in two legal disputes with its franchisees for commercial matters that have arisen over a period of time. These issues
ire subject (o uncertainties and therefore the probability of a loss, if any, being sustained and an estimate of the amount of any loss is
difficult to ascertain. Consequently, for one of these elaims, it is not possible to make a reasonable estimate of the expected financial effect,
il any, that will result from ultimate resolution of these disputes. The Group is contesting these disputes and the Management has made
provision of INR 35 lakhs (March 31, 2020: INR 35.00 lakhs) for one of these matters where it is probable that a loss might be incurred.
The Group's Management believes that outcome of these disputes would not have a material impact on the Group’s financial position and
hence the provision for the same has not been provided for in the books except for one matter.

The Group has hypothecated its freehold land and building, permanent furniture, fixtures, plant and machinery to Catalyst Trusteeship
Limited against Non-convertible debentures (NCD) issued and term loan taken by Future Consumer Limited (the Holding Company)
amounting to INR 15,000 lakhs (March 31, 2020; INR 15,000.00 lakhs).

The Supreme Court of India in a judgment on Provident Fund dated February 28, 2019 addressed the principle for determining salary
components that form part of basic salary for individuals below a prescribed salary threshold. The group determined that they had not
previously included such components in basic salary. There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC)
Jjndgement on PF dated 28th February, 2019. The Group will update its provision, on receiving further clarity on the subject.

The Group is involved in certain legal disputes with some of its franchisces and certain employees for commercial and other matters that
have arisen from time to time, A number of these claims/ disputes relate to recovery of arrears of rent, damages claimed by franchisees etc,
an termination of the franchisee agreement. These matters which are presently in different stages of legal proceedings are subject to
uncertainties and therefore the probability of a loss, if any, being sustained and an estimate of the amount of any loss are difficult to
ascertain. Consequently, for a majority of these claims, it is not possible to make a reasonable estimate of the expected financial effect, if
any, that will result from ultimate resolution of these disputes, The Group is contesting these claims/disputes and the Management has
made provisions wherever it is probable that a loss might be incurred, The Group's Management believes that oulcome of these disputes
would not have a material impact on the Group’s financial position and that the existing provision of INR 49.00 lakhs (March 31, 2020:
INR 49.00 lakhs) is sufficient to cover any outflows arising from unfavourable outcomes,

The Payment of Bonus (Amendment) Act, 2015 passed on December 31, 2015 is effective retrospectively from April 1, 2014, However, the
Hon'ble High Courts in Kerala and Karmnataka have granied stay orders for retrospective application of amendment for the year 2014-15 till
the matter is adjudicated finally. The Group has considered these stay orders and not provided for a liability of INR 41.00 lakhs (March

31,2020: INR 41.00 lakhs) in its consolidated financial statements.

(This page is intentionally left blank)
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50 Share based payments
(a) Details of the employee share based plan of the Group

The ESOP scheme titled “Future Consumer Limited - Employee Stock Opfion Plan 2014 was approved by the Sharcholders of Holding Company
"Future Consumer Limited" vide resolution passed at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on January 12, 2015 and through postal ballot on May
12, 2015 in respect of grant of 31,950,000 options under primary route (ESOP 20 14-Primary) and 79,800,000 options under secondary market route
(ESOP 2014-Secondary). ESOP 2014 has been implemented through a trust route whereby Vistra ITCL India Limited (Formerly 1L&FS Trust
Company Limited) has been appointed as the Trustee who monitors and administers the operations of the Trust,

In earlier years, the Nomination and Remuneration / Compensation Committee of Future Consumer Limited, at its meeling held on May 15, 2015,
has granted 500,000 options under the ESOP 2014-Sccondary to an employee of the Group under the secondary market route. Also committee held
meeting on November 8, 2017 for grant of 1,000,000 options under the ESOP 2014-Secondary to a Director of the Group under the secondary
market route. At the meeting held on August 12, 2016, 495,000 options were granted under the ESOP 2014-Primary to the director of the Group
tnder the primary route. Further, in the previous year, the Nomination and Remuneration / Compensation Commitiee of Future Consumer Limited at
its meeting held on August 14, 2017 has granted 3,00,000 options under the ESOP 2014- Secondary to an employee of the Company under

seeondary market route.

(b) The following share-based payment arrangements were in existence during the current and prior years:

Option scheme Number of Grant date Expiry date Exercise price (INR)  Share Price at Fair value at grant

options granted Grant date date (INR)
(INR)

ESOP 2014-Secondary - Plan | 5,00,000 15-May-15 Refer note (i) below  Refer note (ii) below 11.20 7.05

ESOP 2014-Primary - Plan 1 495,000 12-Aug-16 Refer note (i) below  Refer note (ii) below 21.50 21.40

3 D ”

Ir;;s{)] 2014-Sesondary « Pian 3,00,000 14-Aug-17 Refer note (i) below  Refer note (ii) below 41.25 38.60

B > -5 -

::\fm 20145 pcondany/ - lan 10,00,000 08-Nov-17 Refer note (i) below Refer note (ii) below 60.95 61.75

(i) The options granted vest over a period of 3 years from the date of the grant in proportions specified in the Scheme. Options may be exercised within
3 years from date of vesting,

(i) Market price of the Equity Share of the Holding Company as on the date of grant of Option or the cost of acquisition of such shares to the Company
applying FIFO basis, whichever is higher.

(¢) Options were priced using a Black Scholes option pricing model. Expected volatility is based on the historical share price volatility over the past |

year:
ESOP 2014- ESOP 2014~ ESOP 2014-  ESOP 2014-
Inputs into the model Sccondary Primary Seccondary Sccondary
Plan 1 Plan IT Plan III Plan IV
Grant date of options 15-May-15 12-Aug-16 14-Aug-17 08-Nov-17
Expected volatility (%) 3B.68% 48.88% 38.68% 44.85%
4-0 4-6 years 4-0 4-6

Option life (Years)
Dividend yield (%) 0%
6.43% - 6.63% T12% 10 7.25% 6.43%-6.63%  6.67% - 6.88%

0% 0% 0%

Risk-free interest rate (Average)

(d) Share options exercised during the year :
The following share options were exercised during the year:

For the year ended March 31,2021 For the year ended March 31,2020
. Options scheme Number Exercise date Share price at Number exercised  Exercise date  Share price at
exercised exercise date (INR) exercise date
(INR)

ESOP 2014 Primary - Plan 1l - NA -
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50 Share based payments (continued)
(¢) Movement in share options during the year : The following reconciles the share options outstanding at the beginning and end of the period:

Areconciliation of share options outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year is as follows:

ESOP 2014- ESOP 2014- ESOP 2014- ESOP 2014-
Secondary Primary Secondary Secondary
Plan 1 Plan I1 Plan 111 Plan IV

Asat April 1,2019 = 3,96,000 - -
Granted during the year : : - _
Forfeited during the year - = =
Exercised during the year - - -
As at March 31, 2020 - 3,96,000 = -
Granted during the year E - - .
Forfeited during the year - -
Exercised during the year 2 3 - -
Asat March 31, 2021 - 3,96,000 - -

() Share options outstanding at the end of the year : The share options outstanding at the end of the year had a weighted average remaining

contractual life of Nil (March 31, 2020: 864 days).

(g) The expense recognised for employee services reccived

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
- -230.97

Expense arising from equity settled share based payment transactions (refer note 15)

(h) There were no modifications to the ESOP scheme.

(This page is intentionally left blank)
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(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

52 Segment reporting
For the ycar ended March 31, 2021, the Management views the Group’s operation as a single segment engaged
in business of branding, manufacturing, processing, sclling and distribution of “consumer products”. Hence
there is no separate reportable segment under Ind AS 108 “‘Operating segment”.

The Group does not have any revenue from export and it does not have any asset or liabilities outside India
therefore only geographical segment is "India".

53 During the previous year ended March 2020, the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 to be a
pandemic. Consequent to this, Government of India declared a national lock down on March 24, 2020, which
has impacted the business activities of the Group. The Group has been taking various precautionary measures
to protect employees and their families from COVID-19. The Group has assessed the impact of this pandemic
on its business operations and has considered all relevant internal and external information available up to the
date of approval of these financial statements, in determination of the recoverability and carrying value of the
assets. The impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the overall economic environment being uncertain may affect
the underlying assumptions and estimates which may differ from that considered as at the date of approval of
these financial statements. The Group will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future
economic conditions.

54 Previous year comparatives

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary, to confirm to this year's
classification.

As per our report of even date

For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants The Nilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited
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